
Please ask for Christine Morgan: Telephone 01775 764454 
e-mail: cmorgan@sholland.gov.uk

AGENDA

Committee - GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT

Date & Time - Tuesday, 10 March 2015 at 6.30 pm

Venue - Meeting Room 1, Council Offices, Priory Road, 
Spalding

Membership of the Governance and Audit:

Councillors: G R Aley (Chairman), F Biggadike, C J T H Brewis, P E Coupland, 
A Harrison, A M Newton and R M Rudkin (Vice-Chairman)

Revised quorum 3.

Persons attending the meeting are 
requested to turn off mobile telephones 

Democratic Services
Council Offices, Priory Road
Spalding, Lincs PE11 2XE

Date:  2 March 2015



AGENDA
PLEASE NOTE TIMINGS
ARE APPROXIMATE

TIME
6.30 pm 1. Apologies for absence.

 
6.31 pm 2. Minutes - To sign as a correct record the minutes of the 

meeting held on 18 December 2014 (copy enclosed).
(Pages 1 - 
12)

6.35 pm 3. External Audit Plan 2014/15 - South Holland District 
Council (report of KMPG enclosed)

(Pages 13 
- 40)

6.50 pm 4. Certification of grants and returns 2013/14 - Annual 
report (report of KPMG enclosed)

(Pages 41 
- 46)

7.00 pm 5. Internal Audit Update Report - To update the Committee 
on progress with the Audit Plan November 2014 to 
January 2015 (report of the Audit and Risk Manager 
(Audit Lincolnshire) and the Shared Manager Finance 
(SHDC) enclosed).

(Pages 47 
- 84)

7.15 pm 6. Draft Internal Audit Plan 2015/16 - To present to the 
Committee the draft Internal Audit Plan for 2015/16 
(report of the Audit and Risk Manager (Audit 
Lincolnshire) and the Shared Manager Finance (SHDC) 
enclosed).

(Pages 85 
- 106)

7.30 pm 7. Audit Mandatory Enquiries - To confirm the response to 
the external audit mandatory enquiries (report of the 
Shared Manager Finance enclosed)

(Pages 
107 - 112)

7.40 pm 8. Quarterly Risk Report - To update the Committee on the 
state of risk management within the organisation (report 
of the Executive Director of Commissioning and 
Governance enclosed).

(Pages 
113 - 122)

7.50 pm 9. Governance and Audit Committee Work Programme - To 
set out the Work Programme of the Governance and 
Audit Committee (report of the Democratic Services and 
Legal Manager enclosed).

(Pages 
123 - 130)

8.00 pm 10. Any other items which the Chairman decides are urgent. 
- 

NOTE: No other business is permitted unless by 
reason of special circumstances, which 
shall be specified in the minutes, the 
Chairman is of the opinion that the item(s) 
should be considered as a matter of 
urgency.



- 17 -

Minutes of a meeting of the GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT held in Meeting Room 1, 
Council Offices, Priory Road, Spalding, on Thursday, 18 December 2014 at 5.30 pm.

PRESENT

A M Newton (Chairman)
 

F Biggadike
C J T H Brewis

P E Coupland
A Harrison

 

Apologies for absence were received from or on behalf of Councillors G R Aley and 
R M Rudkin and Helen Brookes (Manager, KPMG). 

In Attendance:  Finance Manager, Community Development Manager, Housing 
Manager, Property Asset Manager, Finance Business Partner, N Bellamy (Audit 
Director, KPMG) and J Scott (Audit Manager, Audit Lincolnshire), National 
Management Trainee and Democratic Services Officer.

Action By
19. ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN FOR THE MEETING 

In the absence of the Chairman and Vice-Chairman the 
Democratic Services Officer requested nominations for a 
temporary Chairman to lead the meeting.

DECISION:

That, in the absence of the Chairman and Vice-Chairman, 
Councillor A M Newton chair the meeting. 

20. MINUTES 

The minutes of the Governance and Audit Committee meeting 
held on 25 September 2014 were signed by the Chairman as a 
correct record. 

21. BUSINESS CONTINUITY UPDATE REPORT 

Consideration was given to the report of the Community 
Development and Health Manager which provided members with 
an update on progress against the Business Continuity Audit of 
May 2014.

Audit Lincolnshire undertook an audit in May 2014 which 
focussed on the following: examination of the Business Continuity 
plans and procedures currently in place; an assessment of how 
this process was exercised and reviewed; and a check that key 
staff were aware of their roles and responsibilities.

Page 1

Agenda Item 2.



- 18 -

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT - 18 December 
2014

The audit findings provided limited assurance but with improving 
direction of travel.  It was noted that the implementation of shared 
and partnership arrangements (shared management and CPBS in 
particular) had resulted in some plans becoming outdated and in 
need of review.  The audit also recognised that work was 
underway to ensure that robust plans were in place and that staff 
were aware of their responsibilities and suitably equipped to 
respond.

The audit highlighted 4 high and 3 medium level 
recommendations.  The key areas for improvement were 
highlighted as being: Completion of all Business Continuity Plans 
with regular reviews and updates scheduled; Promotion and 
embedding of processes with greater emphasis placed on 
business continuity management at senior management level; 
Regular exercising of the Business Continuity Plans; and Training 
on Business Continuity for all staff.

Since the audit in May, a number of steps had been taken to 
address the issues highlighted by the audit report.  As a result, 
two audit recommendations had been fully completed and signed 
off.

A table was attached within the report, detailing progress against 
all recommendations from the audit.   

The Community Development and Health Manager clarified that 
the recommendations from the audit linked in with countywide and 
regionwide recommendations.

Members noted that a Resilience Group had been established, 
which consisted of a Director from the Corporate Management 
Team, the Community Development and Health Manager and two 
Resilience Officers from Lincolnshire County Council.  The Group 
was responsible for reviewing the individual service business 
continuity plans, with assistance from the relevant Service 
Managers.  The Resilience Group would be meeting on a six 
monthly basis and would review a different service plan at each 
meeting.  

Scenario exercises were discussed.  The Community 
Development and Health Manager advised that team exercises 
would be carried out, for which the service manager would be 
responsible, as well as scenarios which affected the whole 
organisation.  

Page 2



- 19 -

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT - 18 December 
2014

AGREED:

That the report be noted.  

(The Community Development and Health Manager left the 
meeting at 5.51 pm, following consideration of the above item.) 

22. QUARTER 2 RISK REPORT 

Consideration was given to the report of the Executive Director 
(Commissioning and Governance) which provided an update on 
the current state of risk management within the organisation.

The updated strategic risk register included 9 strategic risks.  In 
the past, that report had been by exception, but as there were just 
9 in total, all low, medium and high risks had been included and 
were available within the report.  These covered the over-arching 
risks that may affect the strategic direction of the council, rather 
than risks linked to business continuity or those that affected 
discreet service areas.

Risks were grouped into two categories:

 Strategic – these were risks that affected the whole and long 
term plan of the council.  These risks could fundamentally 
impact upon the Authority’s reputation, the organisation that it 
was, and the dependable, accountable delivery of public 
services.

 Operational – these risks concerned the day to day activities in 
the delivery of functions and services.

Risks were rated using a 3x3 matrix through a numerical number 
that combined the impact score of the risk occurring, with the 
likelihood score of it happening.  Risks were then classed as 
High, Medium or Low risk, dependent on their rating.

The risk summary covered two areas: a) The risk summary table 
showed the total number of risks by category and the percentage 
of high, medium and low risks within each category; and b) The 
exceptions report, a detailed report to provide focus on high level 
risks.

Two Risk Summary Tables were detailed within the report, 
showing the risk position at 30 June 2014 (Quarter 1, 2014/15) 
and 30 September 2014 (Quarter 2, 2014/15). Each table detailed 
9 strategic risks and 64 operational risks.  

Page 3



- 20 -

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT - 18 December 
2014

This information informed that:

 Strategic risks were predominantly medium;
 Strategic risks had not changed;
 Operational risks were predominantly medium and low level 

risks;
 No operational risks had closed; and
 One operational risk had increased from a low to a medium 

rating within Human Resources.

Therefore:

 Strategic Risk Overview: Overall rating was medium; and
 Operational Risk Overview: Overall rating was evenly spread 

across medium and low.

Councillor F Biggadike referred to the risk regarding the 
monitoring of S106 agreements.  Councillor C J T H Brewis 
advised that it was necessary to monitor the S106 agreements 
and have member monitoring in place to ensure the allocations 
were dealt with appropriately.  He suggested that the 
Performance Monitoring Panel might want to review the S106 
agreements on a six monthly basis.  Councillor A M Newton 
advised that she would liaise with the Chairmen of both scrutiny 
panels in order gather their views and agree a way forward.

Councillor Brewis referred to village burial sites and queried what 
the District Council’s role was should there be an issue with 
availability of space.  He requested that the National Management 
Trainee provide him with an answer outside of the meeting.  

AGREED:

a) That Councillor A M Newton liaise with the Chairmen of both 
scrutiny panels in order to gather their views and agree a 
way forward with regard to monitoring the S106 agreements; 

b) That the National Management Trainee provide Councillor 
CJ T H Brewis with information with regard to the District 
Councils role with the potential lack of burial space in village 
burial sites; and

c) That the report be noted.  

(The National Management Trainee left the meeting at 6.03 pm, 
following consideration of the above item.) 

AN 

CD 

Page 4



- 21 -

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT - 18 December 
2014

23. HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT (HRA) DRAFT 2015-16 
ESTIMATES 

Consideration was given to the report of the Shared Housing 
Manager which provided information on the Housing Revenue 
Account (HRA) draft 2015-16 estimates. 

A brief presentation was delivered to explain the HRA Budget 
2015-16 and 30 Year Business Plan, which covered the following 
areas:

 Introduction
 The Housing Revenue Account
 Revenue Budget
 Operating Account
 Capital Programme
 30 Year Business Plan
 Challenges, Risks and Sensitivity
 Next Steps

Members noted that following a recommendation from Council, 
Governance arrangements for the management of the HRA 30 
year Business Plan needed to be established and the 
Governance and Audit Committee had been tasked with these 
arrangements.

The Housing Revenue Account (HRA) reflected a statutory 
obligation to maintain a revenue account for local authority 
housing provision in accordance with Part 6 of the Local 
Government and Housing Act 1989.

The HRA was a ring-fenced account, which meant that it may not 
be supported by the General Fund and Council Tax or vice-versa.  
Expenditure and income that may be charged to the account were 
defined either by statute or regulation; the HRA was not permitted 
by law to be in deficit.

From April 2012 the financing of social housing had radically 
changed.  The HRA subsidy system had been replaced by a 
reformed system of council housing finance through powers 
enacted in the Localism Act.  The 30 year HRA business plan 
finance model become more important as the Council had to rely 
on its own resources to maintain a positive HRA Reserve given 
the constraints of the Housing Debt Cap.

Page 5



- 22 -

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT - 18 December 
2014

The appendices to the covering report outlined the draft 2015-16 
revenue and capital estimates for the Housing Revenue Account, 
the outline capital programme through to 2019-20 and the 30 year 
HRA operating account.

AGREED:

That the report be noted.

(The Housing Manager, the Property Asset Manager and the 
Finance Business Partner left the meeting at 6.27 pm, following 
consideration of the above item.) 

24. SHDC ANNUAL AUDIT LETTER 2013/14 

Consideration was given to the report from KPMG, which 
provided details of the Annual Audit Letter 2013/14.  

The report summarised the key findings from the 2013/14 audit of 
South Holland District Council.  Although the letter was addressed 
to the members of the Authority, it was also intended to 
communicate these issues to key external stakeholders, including 
members of the public.

The audit covered the audit of the Authority’s 2013/14 financial 
statements and the 2013/14 value for money conclusion.  All the 
issues within the letter had previously been reported.  The 
detailed findings were contained within the reports listed in 
Appendix 1.

AGREED:

That the report be noted. 

25. EXTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT AND TECHNICAL 
UPDATE 

Consideration was given to the report from KPMG, which 
provided details of the external audit progress and technical 
update, as at November 2014.

The report provided the Governance and Audit Committee with an 
overview on progress in delivering KPMG’s responsibilities as the 
external auditors.  The report also highlighted the main technical 
issues which were currently having an impact in local 
government.  The articles that were believed to have an impact at 
the Authority had been flagged and a perspective had been 
provided on each issue.

Page 6



- 23 -

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT - 18 December 
2014

The Audit Director, KPMG, advised that an audit plan would be 
submitted to the next Committee meeting in March 2015.  

AGREED:

That the report be noted.  

26. INTERNAL AUDIT UPDATE REPORT 

Consideration was given to the report of the Head of Audit & Risk 
Management – Audit Lincolnshire, and the Finance Manager which 
provided an update on progress with the Audit Plan between September 
2014 and November 2014.

The purpose of the report was to:

 Advise of progress being made with the 2014/15 Audit Plan
 Provide details of the audit work during the period
 Provide details of the current position with agreed management 

actions in respect of previously issued reports
 Update the committee on any changes to the 2014/15 Audit Plan 

and any other matters that may be relevant to the Governance 
and Audit Committee role.

Detailed information in relation to assurance definitions; audits 
with limited assurance; outstanding recommendations as at 
03/12/14; outstanding Recommendations as at 03/12/14; and the internal 
audit plan and schedule, were contained within the appendices which 
were attached to the report.

The Audit Manager, Lincolnshire County Council, advised that the 
outstanding reports would be submitted to the next Committee 
meeting in March 2015.

AGREED:

That the report be noted. 

27. MID TERM TREASURY REPORT 2014/15 

Consideration was given to the report of the Section 151 Officer 
which provided an update of the treasury management position of 
the Council as at 30 September 2014.

Treasury management was defined as: ‘The management of the 

Page 7



- 24 -

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT - 18 December 
2014

local authority’s investments and cash flows, its banking, money 
market and capital market transactions; the effective control of the 
risks associated with those activities; and the pursuit of optimum 
performance consistent with those risks’.

The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy’s 
(CIPFA) Code of Practice on Treasury Management 2011 was 
adopted by South Holland District Council on 8 March 2012.  The 
primary requirements of the Code were as follows:

 Creation and maintenance of a Treasury Management Policy 
Statement which set out the policies and objectives of the 
Council’s treasury management activities;

 Creation and maintenance of Treasury Management Practices 
which set out the manner in which the Council will seek to 
achieve those policies and objectives;

 Receipt by the full council of an annual Treasury Management 
Strategy Statement - including the Annual Investment Strategy 
and Minimum Revenue Provision Policy – for the year ahead, 
a Mid-year Review Report and an Annual Report (stewardship 
report) covering activities during the previous year.

 Delegation by the Council of responsibilities for implementing 
and monitoring treasury management policies and practices 
and for the execution and administration of treasury 
management decisions.

 Delegation by the Council of the role of scrutiny of treasury 
management strategy and policies to a specific named body.  
For South Holland District Council, the delegated body was 
the Governance and Audit Committee.

In summary, the mid year report had been prepared in 
compliance with CIPFA’s Code of Practice on Treasury 
Management, and covered the following:

 An economic update for the 2014/15 financial year to 30 
September 2014;

 A review of the Treasury Management Strategy Statement and 
Annual Investment Strategy;

 The Council’s capital expenditure (prudential indicators);
 A review of the Council’s investment portfolio for 2014/15;
 A review of the Council’s borrowing strategy for 2014/15;
 A review of any debt rescheduling undertaken during 2014/15;
 A review of compliance with Treasury and Prudential Limits for 

2014/15

There were no key changes to the Treasury or Capital Strategy.
AGREED:

Page 8



- 25 -

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT - 18 December 
2014

That the report be noted. 

28. TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY STATEMENT, 
MINIMUM REVENUE PROVISION POLICY STATEMENT AND 
ANNUAL INVESTMENT STRATEGY 2015/16 

Consideration was given to the report of the Section 151 Officer 
which gave the Committee the opportunity for pre-decision 
scrutiny of the Treasury Management Strategy Statement, 
Minimum Revenue Provision Policy Statement and Annual 
Investment Strategy 2015/16.   

Treasury Management was defined as: ‘The management of the 
local authority’s investments and cash flows, its banking, money 
market and capital market transactions; the effective control of the 
risks associated with those activities; and the pursuit of optimum 
performance consistent with those risks’.

The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy’s 
(CIPFA) Code of Practice on Treasury Management 2011, 
adopted by the Council on 8 March 2012, required the Council to 
set out its Treasury Management Strategy Statement, Minimum 
Revenue Provision Policy and Annual Investment Strategy for the 
forthcoming year.  These outlined the Council’s strategy for 
borrowing and its policies for managing its investments and for 
giving priority to the security and liquidity of those investments.  
The strategy statements for 2015/16 were attached to the report 
at Appendix A.  The strategy statements covered:

 Reporting requirements
 Capital prudential indicators 2014/15 to 2017/18
 The borrowing requirement
 The Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) policy
 The use of the Council’s resources and the investment 

position
 Prudential and Treasury Indicators
 Treasury limits in force which would limit the treasury risk and 

activities of the Council
 Prospects for interest rates
 The borrowing strategy
 Policy on borrowing in advance of need
 Debt rescheduling 
 The investment policy 
 Creditworthiness policy
 Country limits 
 Investment strategy 

Page 9



- 26 -

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT - 18 December 
2014

The strategy document presented to the Governance and Audit 
Committee for scrutiny was currently at draft stage as the future 
Capital Programme had yet to be finalised and approved by 
Council.  Once this was known, the tables within the strategy 
document shown at Appendix A would be updated and submitted 
to Council for approval before the commencement of the 2015/16 
financial year.

The Council was currently considering the creation of a Housing 
Company and was preparing a Housing Investment Strategy.  
This could involve the Council taking on additional borrowing and 
providing a loan to the Housing Company.  Once further 
information became available, it could result in amendments to 
the draft strategy attached to the covering report.

The Finance Manager advised that he had a meeting with the 
Treasury Advisor in January 2015 from which any changes would 
be report to Cabinet.

AGREED:

That the report be noted. 

29. GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE SELF-ASSESSMENT 

Consideration was given to the report of the Finance Manager.  
Members noted that the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and 
Accountancy (CIPFA) advocated that it was good practice for 
Audit Committees to undertake regular assessments.  Thus 
enabling members to gain an appreciation of what affords best 
practice, to confirm the level of compliance being achieved, and to 
identify any potential areas for enhancements to be made to 
arrangements.  

CIPFA’s Audit Committee Self-Assessment Checklist, which was 
attached as an appendix within the report, focussed on 6 
fundamental areas, and 66 individual aspects of operations.  The 
key areas were as follows:

 Establishment, Operation and Duties;
 Internal Control;
 Financial Reporting and Regulatory Matters;
 Internal Audit;
 External Audit; and
 Administration.

At a workshop session on 25 September the Governance and 

Page 10



- 27 -

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT - 18 December 
2014

Audit Committee systematically went through the checklist to 
assess its performance against the CIPFA standard.  The results 
of the assessment were set out within Appendix 1.  The exercise 
identified a handful of actions that would improve its 
effectiveness.  These were highlighted in bold within the 
appendix.  The actions included the production of an annual 
report of the
work of the audit committee, ensuring that members had 
appropriate induction and training, and the need to hold private 
meetings with the internal and external auditors.

AGREED:

That the report be noted. 

30. GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE WORK 
PROGRAMME 

Consideration was given to the report of the Democratic Services 
and Legal Manager which presented the work programme of the 
Governance and Audit Committee, as set out in Appendix A within 
the report.

Members noted that the schedule of meeting for 2015/16 had 
been finalised and the new dates would be included within the 
Work Programme to be submitted to the next Committee meeting 
in March 2015.

AGREED:

That the report be noted. 

(The meeting ended at 7.15 pm)

(End of minutes)

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



External Audit Plan 
2014/15

South Holland 
District Council 

February 2015

P
age 13

A
genda Item

 3.



1© 2015 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

Contents

The contacts at KPMG 
in connection with this 
report are:

Neil Bellamy
Director
KPMG LLP (UK)
Tel: 0116 256 6082 
neil.bellamy@kpmg.co.uk

Helen Brookes
Manager
KPMG LLP (UK)
Tel: 0115 945 4476
helen.brookes@kpmg.co.uk

Jon Machej
Assistant Manager
KPMG LLP (UK)
Tel: 0115 935 3430
jon.machej@kpmg.co.uk

This report is addressed to the Authority and has been prepared for the sole use of the Authority. We take no responsibility to any member of staff acting in their 
individual capacities, or to third parties. The Audit Commission has issued a document entitled Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies. This 

summarises where the responsibilities of auditors begin and end and what is expected from the audited body. We draw your attention to this document which is available 
on the Audit Commission’s website at www.audit-commission.gov.uk.

External auditors do not act as a substitute for the audited body’s own responsibility for putting in place proper arrangements to ensure that public business is conducted 
in accordance with the law and proper standards, and that public money is safeguarded and properly accounted for, and used economically, efficiently and effectively.

If you have any concerns or are dissatisfied with any part of KPMG’s work, in the first instance you should contact Neil Bellamy the appointed engagement lead to the 
Authority, who will try to resolve your complaint. If you are dissatisfied with your response please contact Trevor Rees on 0161 246 4000, or by email to 

trevor.rees@kpmg.co.uk, who is the national contact partner for all of KPMG’s work with the Audit Commission. After this, if you are still dissatisfied with how your 
complaint has been handled you can access the Audit Commission’s complaints procedure. Put your complaint in writing to the Complaints Unit Manager, Audit 
Commission, 1st Floor, Fry Building, 2 Marsham Street, London, SW1P 4DF or by email to complaints@audit-commission.gsi.gov.uk. Their telephone number is 

03034448330.

Page

Report sections

■ Introduction 2

■ Headlines 3

■ Our audit approach 4

■ Key financial statements audit risks 11

■ VFM audit approach 13

■ Audit team, deliverables, timeline and fees 18

Appendices

1. Independence and objectivity requirements

2. Quality assurance and technical capacity

3. Assessment of Fraud Risk

4.  Transfer of Audit Commission's functions

22

24

25

26

P
age 14

mailto:trevor.rees@kpmg.co.uk


2© 2015 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

Section one
Introduction

This document describes 
how we will deliver our audit 
work for South Holland 
District Council. 

Scope of this report

This document supplements our Audit Fee Letter 2014/15 presented to 
you in April 2014. It describes how we will deliver our financial 
statements audit work for South Holland District Council (‘the 
Authority’). It also sets out our approach to value for money (VFM) 
work for 2014/15. 

We are required to satisfy ourselves that your accounts comply with 
statutory requirements and that proper practices have been observed 
in compiling them. We use a risk based audit approach. 

The audit planning process and risk assessment is an on-going 
process and the assessment and fees in this plan will be kept under 
review and updated if necessary. 

Statutory responsibilities

Our statutory responsibilities and powers are set out in the Audit 
Commission Act 1998 and the Audit Commission’s Code of Audit 
Practice. 

The Audit Commission will close at 31 March 2015. However our audit 
responsibilities under the Audit Commission Act 1998 and the Code of 
Audit Practice in respect of the 2014/15 financial year remain 
unchanged.

The Code of Audit Practice summarises our responsibilities into two 
objectives, requiring us to audit/review and report on your:

■ financial statements (including the Annual Governance Statement): 
providing an opinion on your accounts; and

■ use of resources: concluding on the arrangements in place for 
securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in your use of 
resources (the value for money conclusion).

The Audit Commission’s Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and 
Audited Bodies sets out the respective responsibilities of the auditor 
and the Authority. 

The Audit Commission will cease to exist on 31 March 2015. Details of 
the new arrangements are set out in Appendix 4. The Authority can 
expect further communication from the Audit Commission and its 
successor bodies as the new arrangements are established. This plan 
restricts itself to reference to the existing arrangements. 

Structure of this report

This report is structured as follows:

■ Section 2 includes our headline messages for the financial 
statements audit and Value for Money (VFM) Conclusion.

■ Section 3 describes the approach we take for the audit of the 
financial statements.

■ Section 4 provides further detail on the financial statements audit 
risks.

■ Section 5 explains our approach to VFM arrangements work and 
sets out our initial risk assessment for the VFM conclusion.

■ Section 6 provides information on the audit team, our proposed 
deliverables, the timescales and fees for our work.

Acknowledgements

We would like to take this opportunity to thank officers and Members 
for their continuing help and co-operation throughout our audit work.

P
age 15



3© 2015 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

Section two
Headlines

This table summarises the headline messages. The remainder of this report provides further details on each area.Audit approach Our overall audit approach remains similar to last year with no fundamental changes . Our work is carried out in four 
stages and the timings for these, and specifically our on site work, will be agreed with the Executive Director, the 
Finance Manager and the Senior Finance Analyst at Compass Point Business Services.

Our audit strategy and plan remain flexible as risks and issues change throughout the year. We will review the initial 
assessments presented in this document throughout the year and should any new risks emerge we will evaluate these
and respond accordingly.

Key financial 
statements audit 
risks

We have completed our initial risk assessment for the financial statements audit and have identified a single significant 
risk related to the impact of changes in accounting standards on the consolidation of the Council’s joint venture 
company, Compass Point.

This risk is described in more detail on page 12. We will assess the Authority’s progress in addressing this risk area as 
part of our interim work and conclude this work at year end.

VFM audit approach We have completed our initial risk assessment for the VFM conclusion and have not identified any significant risks at 
this stage.

Audit team, 
deliverables, timeline 
and fees

There has been no change to the audit team from last year.

Our main year end audit is currently planned to commence in August 2015. Upon conclusion of our work we will again 
present our findings to you in our Report to Those Charged with Governance (ISA 260 Report). 

The planned fee for the 2014/15 audit is £59,382. This is £900 higher than the position set out in our Audit Fee Letter 
2014/15, due to the increase agreed by the Audit Commission to reflect the work associated with NNDR.

P
age 16



4© 2015 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

Section three
Our audit approach

We have summarised the four key stages of our financial statements audit process for you below:We undertake our work on 
your financial statements in 
four key stages during 2015:

■ Planning
(January to February).

■ Control Evaluation 
(March to April).

■ Substantive Procedures 
(August to September).

■ Completion (September).

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep

2

3

4

1 Planning

Control 
evaluation

Substantive 
procedures

Completion

■ Update our business understanding and risk assessment. 

■ Assess the organisational control environment. 

■ Determine our audit strategy and plan the audit approach.

■ Issue our Accounts Audit Protocol.

■ Evaluate and test selected controls over key financial systems.

■ Review the work undertaken by the internal audit on controls 
relevant to  our risk assessment.

■ Review the accounts production process. 

■ Review progress on critical accounting matters. 

■ Plan and perform substantive audit procedures.

■ Conclude on critical accounting matters. 

■ Identify audit adjustments. 

■ Review the Annual Governance Statement. 

■ Declare our independence and objectivity.

■ Obtain management representations. 

■ Report matters of governance interest.

■ Form our audit opinion. 

P
age 17



5© 2015 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

Section three
Our audit approach – planning (continued) 

During January and 
February 2015 we complete 
our planning work.

We assess the key risks 
affecting the Authority’s 
financial statements and 
discuss these with officers.

We assess if there are any 
weaknesses in respect of 
central processes that would 
impact on our audit. 

Our planning work takes place in January and February 2015. This 
involves the following aspects: 

Business understanding and risk assessment

We update our understanding of the Authority’s operations and identify 
any areas that will require particular attention during our audit of the 
Authority’s financial statements. 

We identify the key risks including risk of fraud affecting the Authority’s 
financial statements. These are based on our knowledge of the 
Authority, our sector experience and our ongoing dialogue with 
Authority staff. Any risks identified to date through our risk assessment 
process are set out in this document. Our audit strategy and plan will, 
however, remain flexible as the risks and issues change throughout the 
year. It is the Authority’s responsibility to adequately address these 
issues. We encourage the Authority to raise any technical issues with 
us as early as possible so that we can agree the accounting treatment 
in advance of the audit visit. 

We meet with the finance team to consider issues and how they are 
addressed during the financial year end closedown and accounts 
preparation.

Organisational control environment

Controls operated at an organisational level often have an impact on 
controls at an operational level and if there were weaknesses this 
would impact on our audit. 

In particular risk management, internal control and ethics and conduct 
have implications for our financial statements audit. The scope of the 
relevant work of your internal auditors also informs our risk 
assessment. 

Audit strategy and approach to materiality

Our audit is performed in accordance with International Standards on 
Auditing (ISAs) (UK and Ireland). The Engagement Lead sets the 
overall direction of the audit and decides the nature and extent of audit 
activities. We design audit procedures in response to the risk that the 
financial statements are materially misstated. The materiality level is a 
matter of professional judgement and is set by the Engagement Lead.

In accordance with ISA 320 (UK&I) ‘Audit materiality’, we plan and 
perform our audit to provide reasonable assurance that the financial 
statements are free from material misstatement and give a true and 
fair view. Information is considered material if its omission or 
misstatement could influence the economic decisions of users taken on 
the basis of the financial statements.

Further details on assessment of materiality is set out on page 6 of this 
document.

Pl
an

ni
ng

■ Update our business understanding and risk 
assessment including fraud risk.

■ Assess the organisational control environment. 

■ Determine our audit strategy and plan the audit 
approach.

■ Issue our Accounts Audit Protocol.P
age 18



6© 2015 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

Section three
Our audit approach –planning (continued) 

When we determine our 
audit strategy we set a 
monetary materiality level 
for planning purposes.

For 2014/15 we have set this 
at £1.1 million.

We will report uncorrected 
audit differences over 
£50,000 to the Governance 
and Audit Committee. 

Materiality

The assessment of what is material is a matter of professional 
judgment and includes consideration of three aspects: materiality by 
value, nature and context.

■ Material errors by value are those which are simply of significant 
numerical size to distort the reader’s perception of the financial 
statements. Our assessment of the threshold for this depends upon 
the size of key figures in the financial statements, as well as other 
factors such as the level of public interest in the financial 
statements.

■ Errors which are material by nature may not be large in value, but 
may concern accounting disclosures of key importance and 
sensitivity, for example the salaries of senior staff.

■ Errors that are material by context are those that would alter key 
figures in the financial statements from one result to another – for 
example, errors that change successful performance against a 
target to failure.

Materiality based on the current year’s budgeted expenditure

Materiality for planning purposes has been set at £1.1 million. We 
design our procedures to detect errors in specific accounts at a lower 
level of precision.

Reporting to the Governance and Audit Committee

Whilst our audit procedures are designed to identify misstatements 
which are material to our opinion on the financial statements as a 
whole, we nevertheless report to the Governance and Audit Committee 
any misstatements of lesser amounts to the extent that these are 
identified by our audit work.

Under ISA 260(UK&I) ‘Communication with those charged with 
governance’, we are obliged to report uncorrected omissions or 
misstatements other than those which are ‘clearly trivial’ to those 
charged with governance. ISA 260 (UK&I) defines ‘clearly trivial’ as 
matters that are clearly inconsequential, whether taken individually or 
in aggregate and whether judged by any quantitative or qualitative 
criteria.

ISA 450 (UK&I), ‘Evaluation of misstatements identified during the 
audit’, requires us to request that uncorrected misstatements are 
corrected.

In the context of the Authority, we propose that an individual difference 
could normally be considered to be clearly trivial if it is less than 
£50,000.

If management have corrected material misstatements identified during 
the course of the audit, we will consider whether those corrections 
should be communicated to the Governance and Audit Committee to 
assist it in fulfilling its governance responsibilities.

2014/15

£56m

0

25

50

75

100

£1.1m

P
age 19



7© 2015 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

Section three
Our audit approach – planning (continued) 

We will issue our Accounts 
audit protocol following 
completion of our planning 
work.

Accounts audit protocol

At the end of our planning work we will issue our Accounts Audit Protocol. This important document sets out our audit approach and timetable. It 
also summarises the working papers and other evidence we require the Authority to provide during our interim and final accounts visits. 

We have met with the Finance Manager and the Senior Finance Analyst from Compass Point Business Services to discuss mutual learning 
points from the 2013/14 audit. These will be incorporated into our work plan for 2014/15. We revisit progress against areas identified for 
development as the audit progresses.

P
age 20



8© 2015 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

Section three
Our audit approach – control evaluation

During April 2015 we will 
complete our interim audit 
work.

We assess if controls over 
key financial systems were 
effective during 2014/15.

We work with your finance 
team to enhance the 
efficiency of the accounts 
audit. 

We will report any significant 
findings arising from our 
work to the Governance and 
Audit Committee.

Our on site interim visit will be completed during April. During this time 
we will complete work in the following areas: 

Controls over key financial systems
We update our understanding of the Authority’s key financial processes 
where our risk assessment has identified that these are relevant to our 
final accounts audit and where we have determined that this is the 
most efficient audit approach to take. We confirm our understanding by 
completing walkthroughs for these systems. We then test selected 
controls that address key risks within these systems. The strength of 
the control framework informs the substantive testing we complete 
during our final accounts visit. 

Review of internal audit

Where our audit approach is to undertake controls work on financial 
systems, we seek to review any relevant work internal audit have 
completed to minimise unnecessary duplication of work. This will 
inform our overall risk assessment process.

Critical accounting matters

We will discuss the work completed to address the specific risks we 
identified at the planning stage. Wherever possible, we seek to review 
relevant workings and evidence and agree the accounting treatment as 
part of our interim work. 

If there are any significant findings arising from our interim work we will 
present these at the next available Governance and Audit Committee 
meeting.C

on
tr

ol
 

Ev
al

ua
tio

n

■ Evaluate and test controls over key financial systems 
identified as part of our risk assessment.

■ Review the work undertaken by the internal audit 
function on controls relevant to our risk assessment.

■ Review the accounts production process. 

■ Review progress on critical accounting matters. 

P
age 21



9© 2015 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

Section three
Our audit approach – substantive procedures

During August 2015 we will 
be on site for our 
substantive work. 

We complete detailed testing 
of accounts and disclosures 
and conclude on critical 
accounting matters, such as 
specific risk areas. We then 
agree any audit adjustments 
required to the financial 
statements.

We also review the Annual 
Governance Statement for 
consistency with our 
understanding.

We will present our ISA 260 
Report to the Governance 
and Audit Committee in 
September 2015.

Our final accounts visit on site has been provisionally scheduled for 
August 2015. During this time, we will complete the following work: 

Substantive audit procedures

We complete detailed testing on significant balances and disclosures. 
The extent of our work is determined by the Engagement Lead based 
on various factors such as our overall assessment of the Authority’s 
control environment, the effectiveness of controls over individual 
systems and the management of specific risk factors. 

Critical accounting matters 

We conclude our testing of key risk areas identified at the planning 
stage and any additional issues that may have emerged since. 

We will discuss our early findings of the Authority’s approach to 
address the key risk areas with the Finance Manager and the Senior 
Finance Analyst at Compass Point Business Services in April 2015, 
prior to reporting to the Governance and Audit Committee in 
September 2015.

Audit adjustments 

During our on site work, we will meet with the Senior Finance Analyst 
at Compass Point Business Services on a weekly basis to discuss the 
progress of the audit, any differences found and any other issues 
emerging. 

At the end of our on site work, we will hold a closure meeting, where 
we will provide a schedule of audit differences and agree a timetable 
for the completion stage and the accounts sign off. 

To comply with auditing standards, we are required to report 
uncorrected audit differences to the Governance and Audit Committee. 
We also report any material misstatements which have been corrected 
and which we believe should be communicated to you to help you 
meet your governance responsibilities. 

Annual Governance Statement 

We are also required to satisfy ourselves that your Annual Governance 
Statement complies with the applicable framework and is consistent 
with our understanding of your operations. Our review of the work of 
internal audit and consideration of your risk management and 
governance arrangements are part of this. 

We report the findings of our audit of the financial statements work in 
our ISA 260 Report, which we will issue in September 2015.

Su
bs

ta
nt

iv
e 

Pr
oc

ed
ur

es

■ Plan and perform substantive audit procedures.

■ Conclude on critical accounting matters. 

■ Identify and assess any audit adjustments. 

■ Review the Annual Governance Statement. 

P
age 22



10© 2015 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

Section three
Our audit approach – other matters 

In addition to the financial 
statements, we also review 
the Authority’s Whole of 
Government Accounts pack.

We may need to undertake 
additional work if we receive 
objections to the accounts 
from local electors. 

We will communicate with 
you throughout the year, 
both formally and informally.

Whole of government accounts (WGA)

We are required to review and issue an opinion on your WGA 
consolidation to confirm that this is consistent with your financial 
statements. The audit approach has been agreed with HM Treasury 
and the National Audit Office. Deadlines for production of the pack and 
issue of our opinion on the pack have not yet been confirmed.

Elector challenge

The Audit Commission Act 1998 gives electors certain rights. These 
are:

■ the right to inspect the accounts;

■ the right to ask the auditor questions about the accounts; and

■ the right to object to the accounts. 

As a result of these rights, in particular the right to object to the 
accounts, we may need to undertake additional work to form our 
decision on the elector's objection. The additional work could range 
from a small piece of work where we interview an officer and review 
evidence to form our decision, to a more detailed piece of work, where 
we have to interview a range of officers, review significant amounts of 
evidence and seek legal representations on the issues raised. 

The costs incurred in responding to specific questions or objections 
raised by electors are not part of the fee. This work will be charged in 
accordance with the Audit Commission's fee scales.

Reporting and communication 

Reporting is a key part of the audit process, not only in communicating 
the audit findings for the year, but also in ensuring the audit team are 
accountable to you in addressing the issues identified as part of the 
audit strategy. Throughout the year we will communicate with you 
through meetings with the finance team and the Governance and Audit 
Committee. Our deliverables are included on page 19. 

Independence and objectivity confirmation

Professional standards require auditors to communicate to those 
charged with governance, at least annually, all relationships that may 
bear on the firm’s independence and the objectivity of the audit 
engagement partner and audit staff. The standards also place 
requirements on auditors in relation to integrity, objectivity and 
independence.

The standards define ‘those charged with governance’ as ‘those 
persons entrusted with the supervision, control and direction of an 
entity’. In your case this is the Governance and Audit Committee.

KPMG LLP is committed to being and being seen to be independent. 
APB Ethical Standard 1 Integrity, Objectivity and Independence 
requires us to communicate to you in writing all significant facts and 
matters, including those related to the provision of non-audit services 
and the safeguards put in place, in our professional judgement, may 
reasonably be thought to bear on KPMG LLP’s independence and the 
objectivity of the Engagement Lead and the audit team.

Appendix 1 provides further detail on auditors’ responsibilities 
regarding independence and objectivity.

Confirmation statement

We confirm that as of February 2015 in our professional judgement, 
KPMG LLP is independent within the meaning of regulatory and 
professional requirements and the objectivity of the Engagement Lead 
and audit team is not impaired.

P
age 23



11© 2015 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

Section four
Key financial statements audit risks 

Professional standards require us to consider two standard risks for all organisations. We are not elaborating on these standard risks in this plan 
but consider them as a matter of course in our audit and will include any findings arising from our work in our ISA 260 Report.

■ Management override of controls – Management is typically in a powerful position to perpetrate fraud owing to its ability to manipulate 
accounting records and prepare fraudulent financial statements by overriding controls that otherwise appear to be operating effectively. Our 
audit methodology incorporates the risk of management override as a default significant risk. In line with our methodology, we carry out 
appropriate controls testing and substantive procedures, including over journal entries, accounting estimates and significant transactions that 
are outside the normal course of business, or are otherwise unusual.

■ Fraudulent revenue recognition – We do not consider this to be a significant risk for local authorities as there are limited incentives and 
opportunities to manipulate the way income is recognised. We therefore rebut this risk and do not incorporate specific work into our audit plan 
in this area over and above our standard fraud procedures.

Appendix 3 covers more details on our assessment of fraud risk.
The table below sets out the significant risks we have identified through our planning work that are specific to the audit of the Authority’s financial 
statements for 2014/15.
We will revisit our assessment throughout the year and should any additional risks present themselves we will adjust our audit strategy as 
necessary.

In this section we set out our 
assessment of the 
significant risks or other key 
areas of audit focus of the 
Authority's financial 
statements for 2014/15. 

We have identified a single 
specific risk at this stage.

P
age 24



12© 2015 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

Section four
Key financial statements audit risks 

In this section we set out our 
assessment of the 
significant risks or other key 
areas of audit focus of the 
Authority’s financial 
statements for 2014/15. 

For each key risk/significant 
risk area we have outlined 
the impact on our audit plan. 

Key audit risks/Area of other audit focus Impact on audit

Risk
The revised requirements of IFRS10, IFRS11, IFRS12, IAS27 and IAS28 will have 
an impact on the consolidation of the Council’s joint venture company, Compass 
Point. A move from simple equity accounting to line by line consolidation will be 
required with the consequent risk of misstatement.
Our proposed audit work 
As part of our audit, we will ensure that the changes to the consolidation 
requirements are properly reflected in the accounts.

Audit areas affected

■ All areas
Consolidation 

of joint 
ventures

P
age 25



13© 2015 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

Section five
VFM audit approach

Background to approach to VFM work
In meeting their statutory responsibilities relating to economy, 
efficiency and effectiveness, the Commission’s Code of Audit Practice
requires auditors to:

 plan their work based on consideration of the significant risks of 
giving a wrong conclusion (audit risk); and

 carry out only as much work as is appropriate to enable them to 
give a safe VFM conclusion.

To provide stability for auditors and audited bodies, the Audit 
Commission has kept the VFM audit methodology unchanged from 
last year. There are only relatively minor amendments to reflect the 
key issues facing the local government sector.

The approach is structured under two themes, as summarised below.

Our approach to VFM work 
follows guidance provided 
by the Audit Commission.

Specified criteria for VFM 
conclusion

Focus of the criteria Sub-sections

The organisation has proper 
arrangements in place for securing 
financial resilience.

The organisation has robust systems and processes to:

 manage effectively financial risks and opportunities; and 

 secure a stable financial position that enables it to 
continue to operate for the foreseeable future.

 Financial governance

 Financial planning

 Financial control

The organisation has proper 
arrangements for challenging how it 
secures economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness.

The organisation is prioritising its resources within tighter 
budgets, for example by:

 achieving cost reductions; and

 improving efficiency and productivity.

 Prioritising resources

 Improving efficiency and 
productivity

P
age 26



14© 2015 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

Section five 
VFM audit approach (continued)

Overview of the VFM audit approach
The key elements of the VFM audit approach are summarised below.

Each of these stages are summarised further below.

We will follow a risk based 
approach to target audit 
effort on the areas of 
greatest audit risk. 

VFM audit risk 
assessment

Financial 
statements and 
other audit work

Assessment of 
residual audit 

risk

Identification of 
specific VFM 
audit work (if 

any)

Conclude on 
arrangements 

to secure 
VFM

No further work required

Assessment of work by 
other review agencies

Specific local risk based 
work

V
FM

 conclusion

VFM audit stage Audit approach

VFM audit risk 
assessment

We consider the relevance and significance of the potential business risks faced by all local authorities, and other 
risks that apply specifically to the Authority. These are the significant operational and financial risks in achieving 
statutory functions and objectives, which are relevant to auditors’ responsibilities under the Code of Audit Practice. 

In doing so we consider:

 the Authority’s own assessment of the risks it faces, and its arrangements to manage and address its risks;

 information from the Audit Commission’s VFM profile tool ;

 evidence gained from previous audit work, including the response to that work; and

 the work of other inspectorates and review agencies.

P
age 27



15© 2015 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

Our VFM audit will draw 
heavily on other audit work 
which is relevant to our VFM 
responsibilities and the 
results of last year’s VFM 
audit.

We will then form an 
assessment of residual audit 
risk to identify if there are 
any areas where more 
detailed VFM audit work is 
required.

Section five 
VFM audit approach (continued)

VFM audit stage Audit approach

Linkages with 
financial statements 
and other audit 
work

There is a degree of overlap between the work we do as part of the VFM audit and our financial statements audit. 
For example, our financial statements audit includes an assessment and testing of the Authority’s organisational 
control environment, including the Authority’s financial management and governance arrangements, many aspects 
of which are relevant to our VFM audit responsibilities.

We have always sought to avoid duplication of audit effort by integrating our financial statements and VFM work, 
and this will continue. We will therefore draw upon relevant aspects of our financial statements audit work to inform 
the VFM audit. 

Assessment of 
residual audit risk

It is possible that further audit work may be necessary in some areas to ensure sufficient coverage of the two VFM 
criteria. 

Such work may involve interviews with relevant officers and /or the review of documents such as policies, plans and 
minutes. We may also refer to any self assessment the Authority may prepare against the characteristics.

To inform any further work we must draw together an assessment of residual audit risk, taking account of the work 
undertaken already. This will identify those areas requiring further specific audit work to inform the VFM conclusion.

At this stage it is not possible to indicate the number or type of residual audit risks that might require additional audit 
work, and therefore the overall scale of work cannot be easily predicted. If a significant amount of work is necessary 
then we will need to review the adequacy of our agreed audit fee.

Identification of 
specific VFM audit 
work

If we identify residual audit risks, then we will highlight the risk to the Authority and consider the most appropriate 
audit response in each case, including:

 considering the results of work by the Authority, inspectorates and other review agencies; and

 carrying out local risk-based work to form a view on the adequacy of the Authority’s arrangements for securing 
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources.

P
age 28



16© 2015 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

Section five 
VFM audit approach (continued)

Where relevant, we may 
draw upon the range of audit 
tools and review guides 
developed by the Audit 
Commission.

We will conclude on the 
results of the VFM audit 
through our ISA 260 Report.

VFM audit stage Audit approach

Delivery of local risk 
based work

Depending on the nature of the residual audit risk identified, we may be able to draw on audit tools and sources of 
guidance when undertaking specific local risk-based audit work, such as:

 local savings review guides based on selected previous Audit Commission national studies; and

 update briefings for previous Audit Commission studies.

The tools and guides will support our work where we have identified a local risk that is relevant to them. For any 
residual audit risks that relate to issues not covered by one of these tools, we will develop an appropriate audit 
approach drawing on the detailed VFM guidance and other sources of information.

Concluding on VFM 
arrangements

At the conclusion of the VFM audit we will consider the results of the work undertaken and assess the assurance 
obtained against each of the VFM themes regarding the adequacy of the Authority’s arrangements for securing 
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use of resources.

If any issues are identified that may be significant to this assessment, and in particular if there are issues that 
indicate we may need to consider qualifying our VFM conclusion, we will discuss these with management as soon 
as possible. Such issues will also be considered more widely as part of KPMG’s quality control processes, to help 
ensure the consistency of auditors’ decisions.

Reporting On the following page, we report the results of our initial risk assessment. 

We will report on the results of the VFM audit through our ISA 260 Report. This will summarise any specific matters 
arising, and the basis for our overall conclusion.

The key output from the work will be the VFM conclusion (i.e. our opinion on the Authority’s arrangements for 
securing VFM), which forms part of our audit report. 

P
age 29



17© 2015 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

Section five 
VFM audit approach (continued)

In line with the risk-based approach set out on the previous page, we 
have 

■ assessed the Authority’s key business risks which are relevant to 
our VFM conclusion;

■ identified the residual audit risks for our VFM conclusion, taking 
account of work undertaken in previous years or as part of our 
financial statements audit; 

■ considered the results of relevant work by the Authority, the Audit 
Commission, other inspectorates and review agencies in relation to 
these risk areas; and

■ concluded to what extent we need to carry out additional risk-
based work.

Based on our preliminary findings we have identified no residual audit 
risk for our VFM conclusion, 

We will report our final conclusions in our ISA 260 Report 2014/15. 

We have identified  no 
specific VFM risks. 

.

P
age 30



18© 2015 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

Section six
Audit team

Your audit team has been 
drawn from our specialist 
public sector assurance 
department. Our audit team 
were all part of the South 
Holland District Council 
audit last year. 

Contact details are shown 
on page 1.

The audit team will be 
assisted by other KPMG 
specialists as necessary.

“My role is to lead our 
team and ensure the 
delivery of a high quality, 
valued added external 
audit opinion.

I will be the main point of 
contact for the 
Governance and Audit 
Committee and 
Executive Director.”

Neil Bellamy

Director

“I am responsible for the 
management, review 
and delivery of the audit.

I will work closely with 
the director to ensure we 
add value. 

I will liaise with the 
Finance Manager.”

“I will be responsible for 
the on-site delivery of 
our work and will 
supervise the work of 
our audit assistants.

I will liaise with the 
Finance Manager, staff 
at Compass Point and 
Internal Audit Manager.”

Helen Brookes

Manager

Jon Machej

Assistant Manager

P
age 31



19© 2015 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

Section six
Audit deliverables

At the end of each stage of 
our audit we issue certain 
deliverables, including 
reports and opinions.

Our key deliverables will be 
delivered to a high standard 
and on time.

We will discuss and agreed 
each report with the 
Authority’s officers prior to 
publication.

Deliverable Purpose Committee dates

Planning

External Audit Plan ■ Outlines our audit approach.

■ Identifies areas of audit focus and planned procedures.

March 2015

Control evaluation and Substantive procedures

Report to Those 
Charged with 
Governance (ISA 260 
Report) 

■ Details control and process issues.

■ Details the resolution of key audit issues.

■ Communicates adjusted and unadjusted audit differences.

■ Highlights performance improvement recommendations identified during our audit.

■ Comments on the Authority’s value for money arrangements.

September 2015

Completion

Auditor’s Report ■ Provides an opinion on your accounts (including the Annual Governance Statement).

■ Concludes on the arrangements in place for securing economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness in your use of resources (the VFM conclusion).

September 2015

Whole of Government 
Accounts

■ Provide our opinion on the Authority’s WGA pack submission. September 2015

Annual Audit Letter ■ Summarises the outcomes and the key issues arising from our audit work for the year. November 2015

P
age 32



20© 2015 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

Section six
Audit timeline

We will be in continuous 
dialogue with you 
throughout the audit.

Key formal interactions with 
the Governance and Audit 
Committee are:

■ March – External Audit 
Plan;

■ September – ISA 260 
Report;

■ November – Annual Audit 
Letter.

We work with the finance 
team and internal audit 
throughout the year. 

Our main work on site will 
be our:

■ Interim audit visits during 
April.

■ Final accounts audit 
during 
August/September.

Regular meetings between the Engagement Partner and the Executive Director

A
ud

it 
w

or
kf

lo
w

C
om

m
un

ic
at

io
n

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep DecOct Nov

Presentation of 
the External 
Audit Plan

Presentation 
of the ISA260 

Report

Presentation 
of the Annual 
Audit Letter

Continuous liaison with the finance team and internal audit

Interim audit 
visit

Final accounts 
visit

Control 
evaluationAudit planning Substantive 

procedures Completion

Key:  Governance and Audit Committee meetings.

P
age 33



21© 2015 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

Section six
Audit fee

The fee for the 2014/15 audit 
of the Authority is £59,382. 
The fee has only changed by 
the addition of £900 made 
available by the Audit 
Commission to reflect the 
work associated with NNDR.

Our audit fee remains 
indicative and based on you 
meeting our expectations of 
your support.

Meeting these expectations 
will help the delivery of our 
audit within the proposed 
audit fee.

Audit fee

Our Audit Fee Letter 2014/15 presented to you in April 2014 first set 
out our fees for the 2014/15 audit. We have considered it necessary to 
make a minor change to the agreed fees at this stage in respect of the 
addition of £900 made available by the Audit Commission to reflect the 
work associated with NNDR.

Our audit fee includes our work on the VFM conclusion and our audit of 
the Authority’s financial statements. 

The planned audit fee for 2014/15 is £59,382.

Audit fee assumptions

The fee is based on a number of assumptions, including that you will 
provide us with complete and materially accurate financial statements, 
with good quality supporting working papers, within agreed timeframes. 
It is imperative that you achieve this. If this is not the case and we have 
to complete more work than was envisaged, we will need to charge 
additional fees for this work. In setting the fee, we have assumed:

■ the level of risk in relation to the audit of the financial statements is 
not significantly different from that identified for 2014/15;

■ you will inform us of any significant developments impacting on our 
audit;

■ you will identify and implement any changes required under the 
CIPFA Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the UK 
2014/15 within your 2014/15 financial statements;

■ you will comply with the expectations set out in our Accounts Audit 
Protocol, including:

– the financial statements are made available for audit in line with 
the agreed timescales;

– good quality working papers and records will be provided at the 
start of the final accounts audit;

– requested information will be provided within the agreed 
timescales;

– prompt responses will be provided to queries and draft reports; 

■ internal audit meets appropriate professional standards;

■ internal audit adheres to our joint working protocol and completes 
appropriate work on all systems that provide material figures for the 
financial statements and we can place reliance on them for our 
audit; and 

■ additional work will not be required to address questions or 
objections raised by local government electors or for special 
investigations such as those arising from disclosures under the 
Public Interest Disclosure Act 1998.

Meeting these expectations will help ensure the delivery of our audit 
within the agreed audit fee.

The Audit Commission requires us to inform you of specific actions you 
could take to keep the audit fee low. Future audit fees can be kept to a 
minimum if the Authority achieves an efficient and well-controlled 
financial closedown and accounts production process which complies 
with good practice and appropriately addresses new accounting 
developments and risk areas.

Changes to the audit plan

Changes to this plan and the audit fee may be necessary if:

■ new significant audit risks emerge;

■ additional work is required of us by the Audit Commission or other 
regulators; and

■ additional work is required as a result of changes in legislation, 
professional standards or financial reporting requirements.

If changes to this plan and the audit fee are required, we will discuss 
and agree these initially with the Executive Director and Finance 
Manager.

P
age 34



22© 2015 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

Appendices
Appendix 1: Independence and objectivity requirements

This appendix summarises 
auditors’ responsibilities 
regarding independence and 
objectivity.

Independence and objectivity
Auditors are required by the Code to: 
■ carry out their work with independence and objectivity;
■ exercise their professional judgement and act independently of both 

the Commission and the audited body;
■ maintain an objective attitude at all times and not act in any way 

that might give rise to, or be perceived to give rise to, a conflict of 
interest; and

■ resist any improper attempt to influence their judgement in the 
conduct of the audit.

In addition, the Code specifies that auditors should not carry out work 
for an audited body that does not relate directly to the discharge of the 
auditors’ functions under the Code. If the Authority invites us to carry 
out risk-based work in a particular area, which cannot otherwise be 
justified to support our audit conclusions, it will be clearly differentiated 
as work carried out under section 35 of the Audit Commission Act 
1998.
The Code also states that the Commission issues guidance under its 
powers to appoint auditors and to determine their terms of 
appointment. The Standing Guidance for Auditors includes several 
references to arrangements designed to support and reinforce the 
requirements relating to independence, which auditors must comply 
with. These are as follows:
■ Auditors and senior members of their staff who are directly involved 

in the management, supervision or delivery of Commission-related 
work, and senior members of their audit teams should not take part 
in political activity.

■ No member or employee of the firm should accept or hold an 
appointment as a member of an audited body whose auditor is, or 
is proposed to be, from the same firm. In addition, no member or 
employee of the firm should accept or hold such appointments at 
related bodies, such as those linked to the audited body through a 
strategic partnership.

■ Audit staff are expected not to accept appointments as Governors 
at certain types of schools within the local authority.

■ Auditors and their staff should not be employed in any capacity 
(whether paid or unpaid) by an audited body or other organisation 
providing services to an audited body whilst being employed by the 
firm.

■ Firms are expected to comply with the requirements of the 
Commission's protocols on provision of personal financial or tax 
advice to certain senior individuals at audited bodies, independence 
considerations in relation to procurement of services at audited 
bodies, and area wide internal audit work.

■ Auditors appointed by the Commission should not accept 
engagements which involve commenting on the performance of 
other Commission auditors on Commission work without first 
consulting the Commission.

■ Auditors are expected to comply with the Commission’s policy for 
the Engagement Lead to be changed on a periodic basis.

■ Audit suppliers are required to obtain the Commission’s written 
approval prior to changing any Engagement Lead in respect of 
each audited body.

■ Certain other staff changes or appointments require positive action 
to be taken by Firms as set out in the standing guidance.

P
age 35



23© 2015 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

Appendices 
Appendix 2: KPMG Audit Quality Framework

At KPMG we consider audit quality is not just about reaching the right 
opinion, but how we reach that opinion. KPMG views the outcome of a 
quality audit as the delivery of an appropriate and independent opinion 
in compliance with the auditing standards. It is about the processes, 
thought and integrity behind the audit report. This means, above all, 
being independent, compliant with our legal and professional 
requirements, and offering insight and impartial advice                          
to you, our client.

KPMG’s Audit Quality Framework consists of                                  
seven key drivers combined with the                                              
commitment of each individual in KPMG. We                                     
use our seven drivers of audit quality to                                       
articulate what audit quality means to KPMG. 

We believe it is important to be transparent                                                   
about the processes that sit behind a KPMG                                      
audit report, so you can have absolute                                      
confidence in us and in the quality of our audit.
Tone at the top: We make it clear that audit                                  
quality is part of our culture and values and                                
therefore non-negotiable. Tone at the top is the                              
umbrella that covers all the drives of quality through                              
a focused and consistent voice. Neil Bellamy as the                   
Engagement Lead sets the tone on the audit and leads by           
example with a clearly articulated audit strategy and commits a 
significant proportion of his time throughout the audit directing and 
supporting the team.
Association with right clients: We undertake rigorous client and 
engagement acceptance and continuance procedures which are vital to 
the ability of KPMG to provide high-quality professional services to our 
clients.
Clear standards and robust audit tools: We expect our audit 
professionals to adhere to the clear standards we set and we provide a 
range of tools to support them in meeting these expectations. The 
global rollout of KPMG’s eAudIT application has significantly enhanced 

existing audit functionality. eAudIT enables KPMG to deliver a highly 
technically enabled audit. All of our staff have a searchable data base, 
Accounting Research Online, that includes all published accounting  
standards, the KPMG Audit Manual Guidance as well as other relevant 
sector specific  publications,  such as the Audit Commission’s Code of 
Audit Practice.

Recruitment, development and assignment of                         
appropriately qualified personnel: One of the key 

drivers of audit  quality is assigning professionals 
appropriate to the Authority’s risks. We take great 

care to assign the right people to the right 
clients based on a number of factors      

including their skill set, capacity and relevant 
experience. 

We have a well developed technical 
infrastructure across the firm that puts us in 
a strong position to deal with any emerging

issues. This includes:      

- A national public sector technical director 
who has responsibility for co-ordinating our 

response to emerging accounting issues, 
influencing accounting bodies (such as 

CIPFA) as well as acting as a sounding board 
for our auditors. 

- A national technical network of public sector audit professionals is 
established that meets on a monthly basis and is chaired by our 
national technical director.

-A dedicated Department of Professional Practice comprised of over 
100 staff that provide support to our audit teams and deliver our web-
based quarterly technical training. 

We continually focus on 
delivering a high quality 
audit. 

This means building robust 
quality control procedures 
into the core audit process 
rather than bolting them on 
at the end, and embedding 
the right attitude and 
approaches into 
management and staff. 

KPMG’s Audit Quality 
Framework consists of 
seven key drivers combined 
with the commitment of each 
individual in KPMG.

The diagram summarises 
our approach and each level 
is expanded upon.

P
age 36



24© 2015 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

Appendices 
Appendix 2: KPMG Audit Quality Framework

Commitment to technical excellence and quality service delivery: 
Our professionals bring you up- the-minute and accurate technical 
solutions and together with our specialists are capable of solving 
complex audit issues and delivering valued insights. 
Our audit team draws upon specialist resources including Forensic, 
Corporate Finance, Transaction Services, Advisory, Taxation, Actuarial 
and IT. We promote technical excellence and quality service delivery 
through training and accreditation, developing business understanding 
and sector knowledge, investment in technical support, development of 
specialist networks and effective consultation processes. 
Performance of effective and efficient audits: We understand that 
how an audit is conducted is as important as the final result. Our 
drivers of audit quality maximise the performance of the engagement 
team during the conduct of every audit. We expect our people to 
demonstrate certain key behaviors in the performance of effective and 
efficient audits. The key behaviors that our auditors apply throughout 
the audit process to deliver effective and efficient audits are outlined 
below: 
■ timely Engagement Lead and manager involvement;
■ critical assessment of audit evidence;
■ exercise of professional judgment and professional scepticism;
■ ongoing mentoring and on the job coaching, supervision and 

review;
■ appropriately supported and documented conclusions;
■ if relevant, appropriate involvement of the Engagement Quality 

Control reviewer (EQC review);
■ clear reporting of significant findings;
■ insightful, open and honest two-way communication with those 

charged with governance; and
■ client confidentiality, information security and data privacy.

Commitment to continuous improvement: We employ a broad 
range of mechanisms to monitor our performance, respond to feedback 
and understand our opportunities for improvement. 

Our quality review results

We are able to evidence the quality of our audits through the results of 
Audit Commission reviews. The Audit Commission publishes 
information on the quality of work provided by KPMG (and all other 
firms) for audits undertaken on behalf of them (http://www.audit-
commission.gov.uk/audit-regime/audit-quality-review-
programme/principal-audits/kpmg-audit-quality). 

The latest Annual Regulatory Compliance and Quality Report (issued 
June 2014) showed that we are meeting the Audit Commission’s 
overall audit quality and regularity compliance requirements.

We continually focus on 
delivering a high quality 
audit. 

This means building robust 
quality control procedures 
into the core audit process 
rather than bolting them on 
at the end, and embedding 
the right attitude and 
approaches into 
management and staff. 

Quality must build on the 
foundations of well trained 
staff and a robust 
methodology. 

P
age 37

http://www.audit-commission.gov.uk/audit-regime/audit-quality-review-programme/principal-audits/kpmg-audit-quality


25© 2015 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

■ Review of accounting 
policies.

■ Results of analytical 
procedures.

■ Procedures to identify fraud 
risk factors.

■ Discussion amongst 
engagement personnel.

■ Enquiries of management, 
Governance and Audit 
Committee, and others.

■ Evaluate controls that 
prevent, deter, and detect 
fraud.

KPMG’s identification
of fraud risk factors

■ Accounting policy 
assessment.

■ Evaluate design of 
mitigating controls.

■ Test effectiveness of 
controls.

■ Address management 
override of controls.

■ Perform substantive audit 
procedures.

■ Evaluate all audit 
evidence.

■ Communicate to 
Governance and Audit 
Committee and 
management./officers

KPMG’s response to
identified fraud

risk factors

■ We will monitor the 
following areas throughout 
the year and adapt our 
audit approach 
accordingly.

– Revenue recognition.

– Management override 
of controls.

KPMG’s identified
fraud risk factors

■ Adopt sound accounting 
policies.

■ With oversight from those 
charged with governance, 
establish and maintain 
internal control, including 
controls to prevent, deter 
and detect fraud.

■ Establish proper 
tone/culture/ethics.

■ Require periodic 
confirmation by employees 
of their responsibilities.

■ Take appropriate action in 
response to actual, 
suspected or alleged fraud.

■ Disclose to Governance 
and Audit Committee and 
auditors:

– any significant 
deficiencies in internal 
controls.

– any fraud involving 
those with a significant 
role in internal controls.

Members /Officers
responsibilities

Appendices
Appendix 3 : Assessment of fraud risk

We are required to consider
fraud and the impact that
this has on our audit
approach.

We will update our risk
assessment throughout the
audit process and adapt our
approach accordingly.

P
age 38



26© 2015 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

The Audit Commission will 
be writing to audited bodies 
and other stakeholders in 
the coming months with 
more information about the 
transfer of the Commissions’ 
regulatory and other 
functions.  

From 1 April 2015 a transitional body, Public Sector Audit 
Appointments Limited (PSAA), established by the Local Government 
Association (LGA) as an independent company, will oversee the 
Commission’s audit contracts until they end in 2017 (or 2020 if 
extended by DCLG). PSAA’s responsibilities will include setting fees, 
appointing auditors and monitoring the quality of auditors’ work. The 
responsibility for making arrangements for publishing the 
Commission’s value for money profiles tool will also transfer to PSAA. 

From 1 April 2015, the Commission’s other functions will transfer to 
new organisations: 

• responsibility for publishing the statutory Code of Audit Practice 
and guidance for auditors will transfer to the National Audit Office 
(NAO) for audits of the accounts from 2015/16; 

• the Commission’s responsibilities for local value for money studies 
will also transfer to the NAO; and

• the National Fraud Initiative (NFI) will transfer to the Cabinet 
Office.

Appendices
Appendix 4: Transfer of Audit Commissions’ functions

P
age 39



© 2015 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the 
KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG 
International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights 
reserved.

The KPMG name, logo and “cutting through complexity” are registered 
trademarks or trademarks of KPMG International. 

P
age 40



 
        

  KPMG LLP  Tel +44 (0) 115 945 4476 
  Audit  Fax +44 (0) 115 935 3500 
  St Nicholas House  DX 728460 Nottingham 47 

  Park Row  helen.brookes@kpmg.co.uk 
  Nottingham NG1 6FQ   
  United Kingdom   

     
 

s

 
Julie Kennealy, Executive Director 
South Holland District Council 
Council Offices 
Priory Road 
Spalding 
Lincolnshire 
LN11 8UP 

24 February 2015 

 
  
  
  

Our ref HB/1B9 
  

  
  
  

   

 
Dear Julie 

Certification of claims and returns - annual report 2013/14 
 
The Audit Commission requires its external auditors to prepare an annual report on the claims 
and returns it certifies for each client. This letter is our annual report for the certification work we 
have undertaken for 2013/14. 
 
In 2013/14 we carried out certification work on the following claims/returns: 
 

Claim/return Certified value (£) 
BEN01 – Housing Benefit Subsidy Claim 18,974,566 
CFB06 – Pooling of Housing Capital Receipts 585,619 
Total 19,560,185 

 
Matters arising 
 
Housing Benefit Subsidy 
 
As in previous years, our certification work identified a range of issues in relation to the Housing 
Benefit Subsidy claim as follows: 
 

• Due to issues identified in the previous year and, as a result of our initial testing of a 
sample of non-HRA rent rebate cases, testing of the accuracy of a 100% of the cases 
within this section of the claim was performed. This resulted in a number of small 
amendments to the claim being necessary, without any effect on the subsidy claimed. 

• We had to issue a qualification letter due to various issues we identified as a result of 
our sample testing from which we could not reach a conclusion as to whether the claim 
was fairly stated. These issues included errors relating the misclassification of 

  

KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership, is a subsidiary of KPMG 
Europe LLP and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent 
member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative, a Swiss 
entity.  

Registered in England No OC301540 
Registered office: 15 Canada Square, London, E14 5GL 

 

Page 41

Agenda Item 4.



ABCD 

 

 KPMG LLP 
 Certification of claims and returns - annual report 2013/14 
 24 February 2015 

 

overpayments within the subsidy claim form and errors relating to the incorrect 
processing or application of: 

o weekly earnings resulting in both under and over paid benefit for rent rebates; 

o pension savings credits resulting in both under and over paid benefit for rent 
rebates; 

o Termination date of a claim resulting in overpaid benefit for rent rebates; 

o the appropriate Local Housing Association (LHA) rate resulting in underpaid 
benefit for rent allowances; 

o eligible rent resulting in both under and over paid benefit for rent allowances; 
and 

o weekly earnings resulting in both under and over paid benefit for rent 
allowances.  

As there are no specific causes for these errors, with all arising from general processing errors, 
we have made no recommendations to the Authority to improve its claims completion processes 
in respect of this claim for this year. 
 
In our 2012/13 Certification Annual Report we raised two recommendations relating to: 
 

• The need for refresher training for staff involved in the completion of Audit Commission 
housing benefit workbooks; and 
 

• The requirement for the S151 Officer to produce, and for Members to approve, an annual 
report on the Authority’s Risk Based Verification policy. 
 

We are satisfied that the Council has improved its arrangements and has addressed both of these 
recommendations. Full details are included in Appendix 1.  
 
Pooling of Housing Capital Receipts 
 
Our certification work in respect of this claim identified a small number of errors in relation to 
the Authority’s overpayment of poolable capital receipts in relation to Housing Act Advances 
repayments, resulting in an adjustment of £479 to the return. 
 
The Authority have identified the cause of this error and have already put in place corrective 
action to ensure that it does not re-occur. Consequently we have made no recommendations to the 
Authority in respect of this claim for this year. 
 
There are no further matters to report to you regarding our certification work.  
 
 
 

 2 
 

Page 42



ABCD 

 

 KPMG LLP 
 Certification of claims and returns - annual report 2013/14 
 24 February 2015 

 

Certification work fees 

The Audit Commission set an indicative fee for our certification work in 2013/14 of £6,978 which 
is based on the fee for 2011/12, adjusted for certain factors. Our actual fee was higher than the 
indicative fee due to the effect of the errors found in this year and the roll forward of errors from 
2012/13, which resulted in extra testing. The fee for 2013/14 compares to the 2012/13 fee for 
these claims of £9,866. The fee variation is subject to approval by the Audit Commission. 
 
The details are set out in the table below. 
 

Claim 2013/14 
Indicative 

fee (£) 

2013/14 
Final fee 

(£) 

2012/13 
Final fee 

(£) 
BEN01 – Housing Benefit subsidy claim 6,760 9,391 9,230 
CFB06 – Pooling of Housing Capital Receipts 218 218 636 
Total 6,978 9,609 9,866 

 

Yours sincerely 
 

Neil Bellamy 
Director, for and on behalf of KPMG LLP

 3 
 

Page 43



ABCD 

 

 KPMG LLP 
 Certification of claims and returns - annual report 2013/14 
 24 February 2015 

 

 

 

Appendix 1 – Follow up of 2012/13 Certification of Claims and Returns Recommendations 

Number Prior year recommendation Priority Status Management comments 
1 Workbook Completion 

We would encourage any staff 
involved in completion of the Audit 
Commission workbooks to attend 
update training sessions on a periodic 
basis to ensure that they remain fully 
appraised of the Audit Commission 
requirements. 

  Fully implemented. All Internal Audit staff involved in the 
completion of workbooks attended 
refresher training prior to the 
commencement of this year’s housing 
benefits work. 

2 Risk Based Verification (RBV) 
Policy 
Ensure that the appropriate report is 
prepared by the S151 Officer and 
subsequently formally approved by 
Members. 

  Fully implemented. The Authority’s S151 Officer produced 
the required report which was 
subsequently approved by the relevant 
Portfolio Holder under delegated 
arrangements. 

 4 
 

P
age 44



ABCD 

 

 KPMG LLP 
 Certification of claims and returns - annual report 2013/14 
 24 February 2015 

 

This report is addressed to the Authority and has been prepared for the sole use of the Authority. We take 
no responsibility to any member of staff acting in their individual capacities, or to third parties. The Audit 
Commission has issued a document entitled Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies. 
This summarises where the responsibilities of auditors begin and end and what is expected from the audited 
body. We draw your attention to this document. 
External auditors do not act as a substitute for the audited body’s own responsibility for putting in place 
proper arrangements to ensure that public business is conducted in accordance with the law and proper 
standards, and that public money is safeguarded and properly accounted for, and used economically, 
efficiently and effectively. 
 
If you have any concerns or are dissatisfied with any part of KPMG’s work, in the first instance you should 
contact Neil Bellamy, who is the engagement leader to the Authority (telephone 0116 256 6082; e-mail 
neil.bellamy@kpmg.co.uk who will try to resolve your complaint. If you are dissatisfied with your response 
please contact Trevor Rees (telephone 0161 236 4000, e-mail trevor.rees@kpmg.co.uk) who is the national 
contact partner for all of KPMG’s work with the Audit Commission. After this, if you are still dissatisfied 
with how your complaint has been handled you can access the Audit Commission’s complaints procedure. 
Put your complaint in writing to the Complaints Unit Manager, Audit Commission, 3rd Floor, Fry Building, 
2 Marsham Street, London, SW1P 4DF or by email to complaints@audit-commission.gsi.gov.uk. Their 
telephone number is 0303 444 8330.  
 

 5 
 

Page 45



This page is intentionally left blank



SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL

Report of: The Audit & Risk Manager (Audit Lincolnshire) and the Shared Manager 
Finance (SHDC)

To: Governance & Audit Committee – 10 March 2015

(Author: Lucy Pledge – Head of Audit & Risk Management – Audit Lincolnshire
Mark Finch – Shared Manager Finance)

Subject: Internal Audit Update Report

Purpose: To update the Committee on progress with the Audit Plan November 
2014 to January 2015

Recommendation: 

1) That Members consider the content and outcomes of Internal Audit work and 
identify any action required

1.0 BACKGROUND

1.1 The purpose of this report is to:

 Advise of progress being made with the 2014/15 Audit Plan
 Provide details of the audit work during the period 
 Provide details of the current position with agreed management actions in 

respect of previously issued reports
 Update the committee on any changes to the 2014/15 Audit Plan and any 

other matters that may be relevant to the Governance and Audit Committee 
role.

Key Messages 

1.2. Work is progressing on the 2014/15 plan.

 4 Audits complete 23% of jobs (includes HB)
 0 Audits at the scoping/client brief stage 0% of jobs
 8 Audits at fieldwork stage 47% of jobs
 5 Audits at draft report stage 30% of jobs

17 projects

Actual progress is less than expected however the majority of audits were planned 
towards the latter half of the year. Some audits have taken longer than expected to 
commence.

1.3 We have issued three final reports since the last Committee. Five reports are at 
draft report stage. 

Page 47

Agenda Item 5.



Internal Audit work completed from November 2014 to January 2015

1.4 The following audit work has been completed and a final report issued: 

Effective Some improvement 
needed

Major improvement 
needed

Inadequate

Insurance

Cash receipting

Information 
Governance

Note: The Governance & Audit Committee should note that the assurance expressed 
is at the time of issue of the report but before the full implementation of the agreed 
management action plan.  Definitions levels are shown in Appendix 1. 

1.5 Progress with the implementation of agreed management action on high and 
medium recommendations for previous audits is followed up and reported in 
Appendix 3 (summary) and Appendix 4 (detail).  Members received an update on 
Business Continuity at the last Governance and Audit Committee meeting. A new 
Risk and Audit Board is being established; part of this groups remit will be to examine 
outstanding recommendations in more detail with Managers. 

With respect to Appendix 3 below the Governance and Audit Committee should 
note:

 IT Disaster recovery audit follow up underway
 ICT Infrastructure audit follow up underway
 Business Continuity progress was reported to Governance and Audit Committee 

at the previous meeting.
 Risk Management report is being considered by officers and the Risk and Audit 

Board in February 15
 Information Governance Follow report has just been issued
 HRA Business Plan audit follow up is nearing completion

1.6 In the audits given “Some improvement needed” or “Effective” Assurance, we 
confirmed that the Council has sound processes in place as follows:

Cash Receipting

We found that income collection at SHDC is working well.  Staff are experienced and 
aware of their roles and responsibilities. There are weekly management checks and 
the Team Leader also meets with the Senior Cashier weekly to discuss any issues 
and review staffing arrangements.  We were able to trace income from cash 
receipting records to accounts e.g. Council tax, business rates, sundry debtors.

We did find one area which could be strengthened relating to the Payment 
Office and this is being addressed.

Page 48



Insurance

Through our testing, observations and discussions with officers, we have confirmed 
that overall processes are well controlled at both Authorities. In particular: 

 Clear and up to date work instructions are in place 
 Regular reconciliation of payments to ledger 
 Claims were processed promptly and accurately and records of correspondence 

maintained 
 Incidents are reported promptly and to the appropriate department 
 Insurance policies provide adequate cover for Council assets 

We found a couple of areas for improvement as follows: 

Market testing should be undertaken for the provision of Insurance Officer (ELDC). 

At East Lindsey monitoring of invoices should be strengthened to enable individual 
departments to review charges. This will reduce the risk of incorrect payments. 

Audits in Progress

1.7 The following 2014/15 audits are currently in progress:

ICT

The audit is looking to provide assurance on the arrangements for IT security:

 (infrastructure follow up, public service network accreditation, data protection 
agreements), 

 the secure use of mobile devices, 
 arrangements for disaster recovery (this is a follow up review), 
 software management and licensing compliance, 
 ICT strategies and the effectiveness of programme/project management.

Risk Management

This work aims to provide support to Management in reviewing and improving risk 
management arrangements in the Council.

Housing Voids

This work will review all aspects of housing voids management, covering all relevant 
housing teams involved in re-letting Council housing.

Gas safety management 

This review is reviewing gas safety management arrangements in the housing and 
non-housing areas of the Council.

Page 49



Budget preparation/MTFP

Examines the Council’s budget preparation and Medium Term Financial Management 
processes to ensure the Council’s financial control environment is robust and 
operating effectively.

Payroll

This is a Payroll systems audit covering key aspects of the payroll service.

Key control work

This covers a range of key financial systems, examining key controls and forms part 
of our three year financial due diligence internal audit programme.

Partnerships

This review examines governance, monitoring and risk management arrangements 
taking account of the Council’s recent partnership evaluation work.

Audits at Draft Report Stage:

 Housing Revenue Account
 Housing in Multiple Occupation
 CPBS Governance
 ICT Mobile working
 Health and Safety

Performance Information

1.8 Our current performance against targets is shown below: 

Performance Indicator Target Actual @ February 
2015

Percentage of 14/15 plan completed.

Number of Audit Jobs: 17
Completed:                    4

*Time spent

100% 
(revised plan)

74%*

(See comments in 
para 4.2 above)

Percentage of key financial systems 
completed.

100% Annual Indicator

Percentage of recommendations 
agreed.

100% 100%

Percentage of recommendations 
implemented 14/15 audits falling due)

100% or escalated 50%

Page 50



Performance Indicator Target Actual @ February 
2015

Timescales Draft report issued within 
10 working days of 
completing audit. (target 
100%)

Final report issued within 5 
working days of closure 
meeting / receipt of 
management responses. 
(target 100%)

Audit completed to draft 
report stage within two 
months of starting 
fieldwork (target 80%)

62.5%

75%

50%

Client Feedback on Audit (average) Good to excellent 100% 

2.0 OPTIONS

2.1 Consider the content and outcomes of Internal Audit work and identify any action 
required.

3.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION

3.1 To monitor Internal Audit progress including the results of Audit work.

4.0 EXPECTED BENEFITS

4.1 To meet the Audit Committee’s terms of reference in monitoring the work of Internal 
Audit.

5.0 IMPLICATIONS

5.1 Carbon Footprint / Environmental Issues

5.1.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications.

5.2 Constitution & Legal

5.2.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications.

5.3 Contracts

5.3.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications.

5.4 Corporate Priorities

5.4.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications.

Page 51



5.5 Crime and Disorder 

5.5.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications.

5.6 Equality and Diversity / Human Rights

5.6.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications.

5.7 Financial 

5.7.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications.

5.8 Risk Management 

5.8.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications.

5.9 Staffing

5.9.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications.

5.10 Stakeholders / Consultation / Timescales

5.10.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications.

6.0 WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED

6.1 Not applicable

7.0 ACRONYMS 

7.1 IT Information Technology
ICT Information Communication Technology
HRA Housing Revenue Account
SHDC South Holland District Council
ELDC East Lindsey District Council
HB Housing Benefit
MTFP Medium Term Financial Plan
CPBS Compass Point Business Services

Background papers:- None

Lead Contact Officer

Name/Post: Lucy Pledge - Head of Audit & Risk Management, Audit Lincolnshire
Telephone Number: 01522 553692
Email: lucy.pledge@lincolnshire.gov.uk

Director / Officer who will be attending the Meeting:  

Lucy Pledge – Head of Audit & Risk Management – Audit Lincolnshire; 
John Scott – Audit Manager, Audit Lincolnshire
Mark Finch – Shared Manager Finance 

Page 52



Key Decision: No 

Exempt Decision: No 

Appendices attached to this report: 

Appendix 1 – Assurance Definitions
Appendix 2 – Audits with Limited Assurance
Appendix 3 – Outstanding Recommendations
Appendix 4 – Outstanding Recommendations (detail)
Appendix 5 – Internal Audit Plan & Schedule

Page 53



Appendix 1 - Assurance Definitions

Appendix 1 - Assurance Definitions1 
Effective Our critical review or assessment on the activity gives us a high level of 

confidence on service delivery arrangements, management of risks, and the 
operation of controls and / or performance.  

The risk of the activity not achieving its objectives or outcomes is low.  
Controls have been evaluated as adequate, appropriate and are operating 
effectively.

As a guide there are a few low risk / priority actions arising from the review.
Some improvement 
needed

Our critical review or assessment on the activity gives us a reasonable level 
of confidence (assurance) on service delivery arrangements, management of 
risks, and operation of controls and / or performance.

There are some improvements needed in the application of controls to 
manage risks. However, the controls have been evaluated as adequate, 
appropriate and operating sufficiently so that the risk of the activity not 
achieving its objectives is medium to low.  A few specific control or risk 
issues identified.

As a guide there are low to medium risk / priority actions arising from the 
review. 

Major improvement 
needed

Our critical review or assessment on the activity identified numerous 
concerns on service delivery arrangements, management of risks, and 
operation of controls and / or performance.

The controls to manage the key risks were found not always to be operating 
or are inadequate. Therefore, the controls evaluated are unlikely to give a 
reasonable level of confidence (assurance) that the risks are being managed 
effectively.  It is unlikely that the activity will achieve its objectives.  

As a guide there are numerous medium and a few high risk / priority actions 
arising from the review.  

Our work did not identify system failures that could result in any of the 
following:
- damage to the Council’s reputation
- material financial loss
- adverse impact on members of the public
- failure to comply with legal requirements

Inadequate Our critical review or assessment on the activity identified significant 
concerns on service delivery arrangements, management of risks, and 
operation of controls and / or performance.

Our work identified system failures that could result in any of the following:
- damage to the Council’s reputation
- material financial loss
- adverse impact on members of the public

1 These definitions are used as a means of measuring or judging the results and impact of matters 
identified in the audit. The assurance opinion is based on information and evidence which came to our 
attention during the audit.  Our work cannot provide absolute assurance that material errors, loss or 
fraud do not exist. 

Page 54



- failure to comply with legal requirements

There are either gaps in the control framework managing the key risks or the 
controls have been evaluated as not adequate, appropriate or are not being 
effectively operated. Therefore the risk of the activity not achieving its 
objectives is high.

As a guide there are a large number of high risks / priority actions arising 
from the review.

Page 55



Appendix 2 – Audits where assurance is assessed as ‘Major improvement needed” or 
“Inadequate”

Information Governance

A follow-up of the previous Information Governance audit has been performed. The original 
report was issued in January 2014 with actions agreed by the Assistant Director, Democratic 
Services. Testing was undertaken in order to assess action taken in respect of the 
recommendations made in the final report 

The original assurance on this audit was “Limited” Assurance; whilst good progress has been 
made in several areas there are still some key areas to implement, including training and 
currently the assurance rating remains the same. Revised timescales for implementation 
indicate that the assurance rating will be improved by the end of the financial year. 

Recommendation 
table Priority 

Made Implemented Outstanding 

High 5 2 3 
Medium 10 8 2 

Key recommendations still requiring completion:

 Ensuring that (new starter) induction material includes basic awareness of data 
protection and FOI

 Ensuring staff receive appropriate training on data protection and FOI ( includes a 
new training package under development)

 Ensuring the FOI log is brought fully up to date
 Management monitoring of FOI/EIR performance
 Updating the document retention policy and ensuring service managers have a clear 

role in its application
 Ensuring that there is a review of records held
 Further actions to consider

The follow up review identified some further areas for management to consider; these were 
advisory points

END OF APPENDIX 2

Page 56



Appendix 3 - Outstanding recommendations as at February 2015

OutstandingAudit Area Date Assurance Number 
of Recs

Implem’d
H M L

Due 
date not 
yet 
reached 

Asset Management Sept 
2013

Substantial 6 5 1

AX security April 
2012

Limited 20 20

Business Continuity May 
14

Limited 9 6 1 2

Counter Fraud July 
2012

Substantial 5 4 1

HR strategy and 
policies

April 
2014

Substantial 4 1 3

HRA Business Plan Oct 
2012

Limited/Sub
stantial

10 9 1

ICT Disaster 
Recovery

Nov 
2012

Limited 4 3 1

ICT Infrastructure Dec 
2012

Substantial 21 14 7

Procurement Dec 
2013

Limited 6 5 1

Risk Management April 
2014

Substantial 6 0 6

Information 
Governance

Feb 
2014

Limited 16 14 2 1

Welfare reform Feb 
2014

Substantial 5 5

Accounts payable Sept 
2014

Substantial 4 2 2

Recruitment and 
Selection

July 
2014

Substantial 6 3 3

Income Collection Dec 
2014

Effective 2 1 1

Notes 
 IT Disaster recovery audit follow up underway
 ICT Infrastructure audit follow up underway
 Business Continuity progress was reported to Governance and Audit Committee 

at the previous meeting.
 Risk Management report is being considered by officers and the Risk and Audit 

Board in February 15
 Information Governance Follow report has just been issued
 HRA Business Plan audit follow up is near completion

END OF APPENDIX 3

Page 57



APPENDIX 4 

Outstanding Recommendations as at February 2015 (detail)

Name Priority Finding Ref Agreed management 
action

Date to be 
completed

Response 
Comments

Revised 
date for 
completion

Person 
responsible

1 SHDC Asset 
Management 
13/14

Medium There is currently an 
issue with reporting on 
rent collection. The 
length of time a case has 
been in arrears cannot 
be identified at the 
moment. Therefore the 
data for the KPI of less 
than 3% of arrears at 90 
days or more cannot be 
reported. 

CPBS are currently 
working with the team on 
this issue, but there is no 
estimated completion 
time for delivery of a 
report to identify the 
arrears. 

4.1 Arrangements are being 
made with CPBS to meet 
up and work out a short 
term solution to allow KPI 
reporting, as well as a long 
term more permanent 
solution that will provide 
the team with regular and 
accurate data.

If a solution is not 
forthcoming, this will be 
escalated by Steve 
Udberg. 

1/10/2013 Sept 14 Still reported 
as not implemented - 
revised date 31/12/14

Feb 14:  Discussions 
with CPBS ongoing.  
CPBS are revising 
their Credit Control 
policy and expect to be 
able to provide reports 
in 2014/15.  In the 
meantime debtors 
cases are reported 
individually.

31/12/2014 David 
Bailey 
CPBS

P
age 58



2 SHDC_Busin
ess 
Continuity 
2013/14

Medium At this time the Business 
Continuity training 
content is still being 
planned.

10.1 A training plan is currently 
being developed and this 
will be rolled out to staff 
over time. We are also 
planning to increase 
awareness through 
monthly newsletters and 
information on SHINE. We 
will also ensure that this is 
covered in staff inductions 
as well. 

1/8/2014 Feb 15 – no update

Sep 14: There has 
been some delay in 
progressing this due to 
cross over in annual 
leave commitments. 
The internal 
communication around 
BC will be developed 
through the 
Communications 
group which meets on 
Thursday 11th 
September.

01/08/2014 for 
implementation, 
training rolled out from 
this date

1/12/2014 Riana 
Rudland, 
Community 
Developme
nt Manager

3 SHDC_Busin
ess 
Continuity 
2013/14

High The Business Continuity 
Plans are not complete 
for all departments. The 
impact of this is that 
there could be a lack of 
clarity or procedures 
should an incident occur. 

We also found instances 
of completed versions 
that were still designated 
as "draft" versions, had 
missing information and 
answers that were not 
definite.

11.1 Once the Corporate Plan 
has been updated, this 
allows for more focus on 
the smaller Service Area 
plans. While it is still down 
to the Service Managers 
to update their plans, the 
findings of this audit and 
the support of JEMS 
should help ensure that 
this is completed 
accurately and on a more 
regular basis.

1/9/2014  Feb 15 – 

Key areas completed

Also awaiting 
engagement/links with 
IT Disaster Recovery 
Plan

Date to be 
confirmed

Riana 
Rudland, 
Community 
Developme
nt Manager

P
age 59



4 SHDC_Busin
ess 
Continuity 
2013/14

Medium There is limited 
information on Business 
Continuity available to 
staff at the moment.

6.1 We have plans to have a 
section on SHINE. This 
will also show any updates 
on the front page so that 
users can see all changes. 
We are also looking at 
increasing our internal 
communications. There is 
the potential for a monthly 
newsletter to come from 
the Comms team with the 
option of including updates 
as part of staff briefings 
delivered by the Chief 
Exec. Once this is in place 
we can then include 
information on Business 
Continuity.

1/8/2014 Feb 15 – no update

Sep 14: The BC 
section on SHINE is in 
the process of being 
developed. The 
internal 
communication around 
BC will be developed 
through the 
Communication group 

1/12/2014 Riana 
Rudland, 
Communit
y 
Developm
ent 
Manager

5 SHDC_Count
er Fraud 
Review 
(Health 
Check) 12/13

Medium The Sanctions Policy 
(Housing Benefit and 
Council Tax Benefit 
Fraud offences) also 
requires review to ensure 
it is up to date. 

1.1.1 All legislation is now in 
place for the Single Fraud 
Investigation Service. This 
will be implemented in 
April 2013 and policies will 
be updated in accordance 
with this.

30/9/2014 Feb 15

Draft Policy is being 
considered- may be 
taken through relevant 
Portfolio holder for 
approval

By 31/3/15

30/11/2014

Sharon 
Hammond 
& Andy 
Eaman 
(CPBS)

Mark Finch 
SHDC

P
age 60



6 SHDC_HR 
strategy & 
policies 
2013/14

Medium Performance statistics 
supplied by CPBS to 
SHDC for inclusion 
SHINE are not 
independently validated 
by the Joint Performance 
Team.

3.1 Accuracy and quality of 
performance data is a key 
requirement within any 
performance system if 
poor decisions are not to 
be made. 

We are currently reviewing 
the performance indicator/ 
measures requirements of 
the Council and will 
include this requirement 
for suitable validation and 
data quality assurance 
checks within our 
performance management 
system review.

30/9/2014 Feb 15 – no further 
update

Data provided by 
CPBS and other third 
parties is not currently 
validated by the 
Corporate 
Improvement & 
Performance Team, 
largely due to resource 
and capacity issues. 
The CIP Team is 
currently undergoing a 
review and restructure, 
due to conclude in Q4, 
following which 
additional capacity will 
be in place. The team 
is also currently 
working on refreshing 
the Data Quality 
Strategy, which will 
include commitments 
to routine sampling of 
data provided, which 
the additional 
resources will conduct 
as part of their roles

31/3/2015 Jo Russell

P
age 61



7 SHDC_HR 
strategy & 
policies 
2013/14

Medium There are no corporate 
performance indicator to 
monitor the completion 
rate of the Performance 
Development Reviews.

4.1 It was agreed that the 
introduction of a 
performance indicator 
would help encourage 
managers to undertake 
PDR's with their staff in 
line with the PDR policy.   
Thereby enabling prompt 
identification of the training 
requirement for the year 
and production of a timely 
training plan.  

The HR manager will 
approach the Performance 
Team and Senior 
Management to discuss 
the inclusion of an 
indicator as part of the 
performance indicator 
review that is currently 
taking place.

30/9/2014  Feb 15 – no further5 
update

30/4/2015 Ruth 
Hassall - 
HR 
Manager

8 SHDC_HR 
strategy & 
policies 
2013/14

Medium Officers who took part in 
the review were unable 
to find an approved 
Service Level Agreement 
covering the provision of 
a Human Resources 
function.

Officers did provide a 
draft document.

2.1 The HR manager agreed 
with the finding explaining 
that she had recently been 
considering an update to 
the SLA. 

The HR manager will 
instigate a meeting with 
CPBS to review the 
current SLA in preparation 
for taking to Senior 
Management for formal 
approval

1/9/2014 Feb 15 update

Draft revised HR SLA 
is in development with 
CPBS and the Council

Ruth 
Hassall - 
HR 
Manager

P
age 62



9 SHDC_HR 
strategy & 
policies 
2013/14

Medium Review of the Workforce 
Strategy document 
identified that it had not 
been reviewed since it 
was introduced in 2009.

Additionally review of a 
number of the HR 
policies identified that 
they had also not been 
reviewed for a number of 
years.  For example;

Performance 
Management Policy 
September 2009

Long & Short Term 
Sickness policies March 
2010.

1.1 The HR Manager 
explained that following 
comments made by the 
Shared Management 
Team with regards to 
some issues they have in 
working to the different HR 
policies in place at both 
Council's, consideration is 
being given to introducing 
where applicable single 
policies covering both 
Councils.

Once agreement is 
reached on this approach 
a programme of policy 
reviews will be instigated.

Feb 15 update

No further details

Ruth 
Hassall - 
HR 
Manager

10 SHDC_HRA 
Business 
Plan

High In March 2012, officers 
proposed revised 
governance 
arrangements for the 
HRA Business Plan that 
would address the 'risk to 
the sustainability of the 
plan' that current 
arrangements were 
considered to present.

Whilst agreement to 
implement the proposal 
to form a specific HRA 
group or panel to 
oversee the plan was 
documented in Full 
Council minutes of 7 
March 2012, the group 

1.1 We will consult with 
management team and 
Portfolio Holders to 
identify ways to implement 
this recommendation.

31/3/2013 Feb 15 update

A report has been 
prepared which makes 
recommendations for 
governance 
arrangements for the 
HRA. This has been 
scheduled to be 
considered by CMT in 
February 2015

NB current HRA follow 
up internal audit 
nearing completion 

.

31/12/2014 Duncan 
Hall, 
Housing 
Manager

P
age 63



was not set up.

Management have now 
clarified scrutiny 
arrangements within a 
paper to Full Council 
(24th October 2012) and 
this element of 
governance will added to 
the responsibilities of the 
Governance and Audit 
Committee.

The committee will not 
provide the regular, more 
detailed monitoring and 
review of the plan that 
was the role originally set 
out for a dedicated HRA 
group, including:
§ review of detailed 
budgetary control reports

§ ongoing management 
of risks

§ political input to the 
plan on service and  
council's priorities

engagement with 
Tenants to consider their 
views and priorities 
(tenants were to be 
members of the group).

P
age 64



11 SHDC_ICT 
Disaster 
Recovery 
2012/13

High Details of critical systems 
have not been reviewed 
at ELDC since CPBS 
was created and do not 
exist at SHDC.

2.1 CPBS Business Continuity 
Team will establish 
recovery priorities and 
determine timescales and 
will meet with the client 
Business Continuity 
Groups.

31/3/2013 Feb 15 – no update

Reviewing DR as part 
of current ICT internal 
audit. 

Overdue 
31/3/2014

Rob 
Barlow, 
ELDC 
Section 
151 Officer 
and SHDC 
ICT 
Manager (S 
Linsley)

12 SHDC_ICT 
Infrastructure

Medium Whilst individual ICT 
strategies exist there is 
no single ICT strategy 
document reflecting the 
needs of ELDC, SHDC 
and CPBS.

1.1 CPBS shall produce an 
overarching ICT strategy. 

The two Council's will 
need to develop their own 
policies that reflect their 
Corporate policies, to 
which CPBS's policy will 
respond.

31/3/2013 Feb 15 – no update

Strategy audit is part 
of current ICT internal 
audit 2014/15 

 Rob 
Barlow, 
ELDC 
Section 
151 Officer 
and SHDC 
ICT 
Manager

13 SHDC_ICT 
Infrastructure

Medium There is a reference to 
event logging in the 
'Communications and 
Operations management' 
procedure, however a 
more detailed policy is 
required.

We were advised that a 
discussion paper on 
application administration 
is being prepared for 
CPBS MT.

8.1 This has been 
incorporated into CPBS 
procedures firstly for 
CPBS managed systems 
and secondly for Client 
systems.

CPBS

ELDC

SHDC

30/9/2013 Feb 15 

Update from GS 
02/11/14.  This has 
been re-prioritised 
based on other 
workloads to be 
completed for next 
coco submission that 
is now calendared for 
04/2015.

30/4/2015

Was 
31/10/2014

S Burns, M 
Payne

P
age 65



14 SHDC_ICT 
Infrastructure

Medium The backup policy for 
servers and applications 
is not currently captured 
and recorded via the 
service desk (Hornbill).

10.1 Records will be added to 
Hornbill system.

30/4/2013 Feb 15 – no update

Sep 14: We are also 
exploring opportunities 
to rationalise the back-
up solution. Target 
date extended to Oct 
14

28/2/2015 M Hall

15 SHDC_ICT 
Infrastructure

Medium No firewall policies exist. 12.1 All changes are agreed 
but it is acknowledged that 
it is not formally 
documented. This will be 
incorporated into the 
change control review 
identified in 6 above.

30/4/2013 Feb 15 update

Update from GS 
02/11/14.  This has 
been re-prioritised 
based on other 
workloads to be 
completed for next 
coco submission that 
is now calendared for 
04/2015.

Sep 14: GS Update 
policies are being 
compiled to reflect new 
walled garden 
approach to be 
installed later this year.

30/4/2015

Was
31/10/2014

G 
Stephens, 
S Burns

16 SHDC_ICT 
Infrastructure

Medium There is no security 
training plan covering 
staff at CPBS, SHDC 
and ELDC.

13.1 We will engage with the 
clients on their training 
requirements and provide 
training materials.
CPBS will add to its 
training programme for 
CPBS Staff.

31/12/2013 Feb 15 – no further 
update

Sept 14; target date 
extended to Nov 14

30/11/2014 Tony 
Lascelles, 
CPBS 
Head of HR

P
age 66



17 SHDC_ICT 
Infrastructure

Medium For ELDC there is no 
intrusion prevention 
system. For SHDC a 
LAN guardian product 
has been deployed, 
however it is 
questionable as to how 
much usage is made of 
it.

15.1 Will install a system for 
ELDC if approval given for 
the expenditure.

30/6/2013 Feb 15 update

GS 27-11.  As we now 
move into a further 
change to the COCO it 
appears this may not 
be necessary.  As we 
prepare for the next 
submissions due in 
2015 we willl take 
guidance from the 
assessors and either 
introduce in time for 
the 2015 submission 
or close as not 
required.

30/4/2015

30/11/2014

S Burns

18 SHDC_ICT 
Infrastructure

Medium There are three Windows 
domains covering SHDC, 
ELDC and CPBS and a 
concern was raised with 
regard to the stability of 
the SHDC Windows 
domain.

21.1 The process of replacing 
the SHDC domain has 
commenced. Migrating to 
active Directory.

31/12/2013 Feb 15 update
 The SHDC domain 
will be upgraded as we 
continue the Citrix 
rollout.  UAT is now 
underway and we 
expect to continue on 
track.
Update from GS 
5/1/14  There has 
been no substantive 
failures of any of the 
domains we manage 
since this was opened.  
The upgrades of the 
AD structure continue 
on course and so am 
closing this action.  
This was also 
confirmed with 
auditors Dec 2014.

28/2/2015 G 
Stephens, 
S Burns

P
age 67



19 SHDC_Procu
rement 
2013/14

High Our review of top 
suppliers by payment 
value found that in four 
out of the ten we 
sampled there were no 
tendering 
arrangements/contracts 
in place.

Where this is the case, 
procurement 
arrangements have not 
followed contract 
regulations, with the risk 
that the Council cannot 
demonstrate 
transparency and 
fairness in supplier 
selection or that value for 
money has been 
achieved.

We note that 
Procurement 
Lincolnshire and SHDC 
are currently undertaking 
reviews which should 
address some of the 
contracts in our sample.

1.1 A strategic commissioning 
group has been 
established across 
Breckland and SHDC.  As 
part of this, Procurement 
Lincolnshire have been 
asked to undertake a 
headline category spend 
analysis and provide 
recommendations on 
procurement options 
against items which can 
be easily and quickly 
procured.

31/3/2014 Feb 15 update
Contract review 
exercise is underway 
by Procurement 
Lincolnshire on behalf 
of SHDC and other 
Lincolnshire Councils. 
Output of review has 
been provided and is 
due to be taken 
forward between 
Procurement Lincs 
and the new post of 
'Client-Side Contract 
Officer', which is 
currently out to 
recruitment.
This includes analysis 
of any gaps between 
spend data and the 
contract register, 
identification of 
collaborative 
opportunities and 
production of an action 
plan to address any 
issues identified. The 
review is expected to 
conclude by end of Q3 
(December 2014). 
Following this, a new 
post of 'Client-Side 
Contract Officer' will be 
in post in early 2015 to 
take forward any 
necessary action

30/09/15 Jo Russell

P
age 68



20 SHDC_SHD
C Information 
Governance 
13/14

High Our discussions with a 
sample of council staff 
identified that 3 out of 9 
had not received training 
on data protection, and 1 
out of 9 had not received 
training on FOI.

The staff interviewed all 
stated that they were 
confident that they 
understand requirements 
without training. 
However, 5 out of 9 
interviewed stated that 
they were uncertain 
about or didn't know the 
statutory time limits for 
responding to a subject 
data access request.

Training is a fundamental 
control to ensure staff 
have sufficient 
understanding of their 
responsibilities for data 
protection and FOI.

There are no regular 
reminders to raise 
awareness of data 
protection and FOI.

3.1 This will be looked into 
while we update the 
policies. We will examine 
possible E-Learning 
programmes to enable all 
staff to gain a better 
understanding of DP and 
FOI, and provide refresher 
training to those staff that 
have already had formal 
training.

We will also look at 
providing support to 
managers to enable them 
to discuss this at team 
meetings and will send out 
emails to all staff on a 
quarterly basis to remind 
them of the process and 
provide links to the 
policies.

1/6/2014 In progress

Training package in 
development. 

There will be visits to 
Team meetings to 
discuss FOI and DPA 
to raise awareness in 
the meantime.

Temporary loss of 
resource has caused 
some delay in 
implementation

30 Sept 
2015

Louisa 
Clare, 
Member 
Services 
Officer

P
age 69



21 SHDC_SHD
C Information 
Governance 
13/14

High The document retention 
policy is dated 2005 and 
there is no evidence that 
it has been reviewed 
since this date. 

In the 8 years since the 
policy was created the 
documents produced by 
service areas are likely to 
have changed and some 
services are now run by 
CPBS. 

In the absence of an up 
to date and 
comprehensive policy, 
there is a risk that 
information is not 
retained for an 
appropriate period of 
time.

15.1 This will be checked and 
updated. Due to the links 
with Compass Point, we 
will co-ordinate with Karen 
Rippen from CPBS to 
complete the 
recommendations.

1/8/2014 Feb 15

In progress

30/09/15 Louisa 
Clare, 
Member 
Services 
Officer

P
age 70



22 SHDC_SHD
C Information 
Governance 
13/14

Medium The majority of officers 
we interviewed did not 
know who was 
responsible for checking 
compliance with 
document retention 
periods in their 
department or when / if 
checks are completed.

If responsibility is not 
clear, information may 
not be retained for the 
correct period of time 
and the council may face 
criticism when it has to 
respond to subject 
access or FOI requests.

16.1 We will update our policies 
and ensure that each team 
has a nominated 
champion. We will confirm 
that these members of 
staff understand their roles 
and this will be refreshed 
through the use of 
reminder emails. 

1/8/2014 Feb 15 update

In progress

1/1/2015 Louisa 
Clare, 
Member 
Services 
Offcer

P
age 71



23 ELDC & 
SHDC 
Accounts 
Payable

Medium Authorised signatories  Authorised Signatory lists 
will be uploaded to the 
Council portals - allowing 
budget managers to 
review permissions and 
complete a signed form for 
additions/removals. Ops 
Support will sample check 
updates to the list to 
ensure it matches the 
forms. An alert system is 
currently being designed 
within he system to flag to 
staff of any 
updates/changes made tot 
he list

31/10/2014 25/01/15 - Now MV in 
place I am looking to 
move this forward now 
and will be looking to 
add to the IT projects 
for completion

31/3/15 Team 
Leader 
Operations 
Support

24 ELDC & 
SHDC 
Accounts 
Payable

Medium

Separation of Duties 1.22

Will be updated during the 
next review of the 
Council’s Consitution 31/12/2014

Mark Finch

25 Income 
Collection 
2014/15

Medium The key registers for the 
Payment Office door 
keys and the Payment 
Office safe are not up to 
date.  They do not reflect 
who currently holds the 
keys - one safe key has 
been transferred 
between Team Leaders 
but this has not been 
evidenced.  A Payment 1.1

The key registers will be 
updated to reflect those 
staff who currently hold 
keys and staff will be 
asked to re-sign for the 
keys they hold. 31/1/2015

Implemented Melissa 
Lawtion-
Team 
Leader

P
age 72



Office door key held by 
the Customer Services 
Team Leaders has not 
been signed out in the 
key register.

It is important to make 
sure than all key holders 
are recorded and have 
signed to confirm their 
responsibility in case any 
queries arise.

26 Payroll Payroll recommendations 
have been superseded – 
interim work completed 
in 13/14 and further work 
completed in February 
March 2015

Wait for the outcome of 
this work.

27 Risk 
Management

Medium The Risk Policy refers to 
Risk Appetite and places 
responsibility for 
identifying the Risk 
Appetite with CMT. We 
could not identify that 
assessment of Risk 
Appetite has been 
undertaken and the 
Policy and Process 
Guides do not explain 
what Risk Appetite is. 

Without a clear 
assessment of the Risk 

This will be addressed as 
part of the review of the 
risk management 
processes. We will put in 
place a tolerance level for 
the strategic risks. 
Following this we will then 
expand this towards 
specific services and may 
even look at including 
projects in the long term.

1/12/2014

P
age 73



Appetite and some 
guidance, there is no 
clear direction on what 
level of risk Senior 
Management wish the 
organisation to take.

28 Risk 
Management

Medium The Strategic Risk 
Register lacks clarity with 
how each risk links to the 
Corporate Objectives.

We will add "impact on the 
Corporate objectives" 
within the Impact/Severity 
table that (together with 
the likelihood) scores the 
risk and not as an 
additional column in the 
actual register.

1/12/2014 To be discussed with 
officers and at Risk 
and Audit Board

30/09/2015

29 Risk 
Management

Medium The Strategic Risk 
Register and Operational 
Risk Registers include a 
column headed 
'mitigating actions (what 
will be done if this 
occurs). 

A large number of risks 
on the operational risk 
register and all but one of 
the risks on the strategic 
risk register do not have 
anything recorded in their 
"mitigating actions" 
column.  Where these 
are recorded they 
actually reflect actions 
that would add to current 
controls rather than what 
would be done if a risk 
was realised.

Agreed. This will be 
looked at and updated as 
part of the Risk Review 
process.

1/12/2014 As aboveP
age 74



It is not clear how officers 
are expected to use this 
column to help them 
address the risks 
identified.

30 Risk 
Management

Medium Senior members of staff 
within the Risk team 
have left the Authority in 
recent weeks.  A review 
of performance & risk for 
both SHDC and 
Breckland is planned in 
the next few months. 

With the loss of two staff, 
the team may not have 
the experience or 
capacity to provide an 
effective risk 
management service to 
the district.

Dale Robinson has been 
put into place to manage 
this process as an interim 
solution.

A permanent solution will 
be sought as part of the 
Business support services 
Review and this will be 
formally agreed by CMT.

1/12/2014 As above

31 Risk 
Management

Medium Two recommendations 
from the last audit review 
in 2012 have not yet 
been actioned. These 
are:

* Plan in place to embed 
the Risk Management 
Policy across the 
Authority

* Training Plan written to 
provide Risk 
Management training to 
members and staff.

An approach to risk 

Agreed. These two 
findings will be actioned as 
part of the review of the 
risk management 
processes.

1/12/2014 As above

P
age 75



training had been agreed 
but we understand that 
this has been put on hold 
and will be considered as 
part of the service review 
of performance and risk 
at SHDC and Breckland. 

Training helps to ensure 
that staff are identifying 
the right risks, 
opportunities and 
mitigating controls in 
their service areas to 
effectively manage the 
Council's key risks.

32 Risk 
Management

Medium With the six month 
changeover to the new 
Performance 
Management system, the 
Programme Board has 
not met recently. The 
Board oversees the 
different elements of 
performance 
management, including 
risk.

This is a key part of the 
authority's governance 
over these arrangements 
to undertake more 
detailed scrutiny and 
hold managers to 
account.

The Programme Board in 
its previous iteration has 
now gone. The review of 
the risk management 
processes will examine 
the level of accountability 
and governance 
arrangements that will be 
expected by SHDC and 
decide on the new 
arrangements. In the 
interim, this information 
will still be reported to the 
Audit Committee to ensure 
that member scrutiny is in 
place.

1/12/2014 As above

End of Appendix 4

P
age 76



Appendix 5  Internal Audit Plan and Schedule 2014/15

Area Days Indicative Scope Planned 
Start Date

Actual 
Start Date

Final 
Report 
Issued

Status / Assurance 
Level Given

Critical Service Activities
Chief Executive
Risk Management         10 Risk Management Audit will 

review the effectiveness of 
risk management 
arrangements and also 
assess relevance of 
strategic risks.

Replaces Key Officer 
Groups audit due to 
management changes in 
this area.

December 
14

January 15 Scope under 
discussion 
December 14

Executive Director
Housing Revenue Account         10 Follow up to previous audit December 

14
January 15 Draft report Feb 15

CSU         15 Operational delivery 
assurance; includes gas 
servicing review.

January 15 January 15 Voids management 

Gas servicing 
(Housing and non-
housing).

P
age 77



Area Days Indicative Scope Planned 
Start Date

Actual 
Start Date

Final 
Report 
Issued

Status / Assurance 
Level Given

Sub total          35

Due Diligence

Finance Systems
 Cash receipting (CR)
 Budget preparation (BP) / 

Medium Term Financial 
Plan (MTFP)

 Payroll (P)

CR-09
BP/MTFP -04

16

To ensure the Council’s 
financial control 
environment is robust and 
operating effectively.

Areas selected from risk 
assessment, last audit, 
changes, External Audit 
liaison and assurance map.

The MTFP audit will now 
include work on savings 
targets which was 
previously a separate audit 

CR
August 14

BP / MTFP
December 
14

P
December 
14

Sept 14

January 15

January 15

9 January  
15 Cash 
receipting

This will be 
delivered in 
conjunction with 
ELDC internal audit.

SHDC auditors
Payroll
Cash Receipting 
(Final report stage)

ELDC auditors
BP/MTFP
Cash Receipting

Key Control Testing of 
Financial systems

14 To undertake testing on key 
controls within finance 
systems for Head of Audit 
assurance

January 15 January 15 This will be 
delivered in 
conjunction with 
ELDC internal audit.

SHDC
Creditors/Property/ 
Housing benefits

P
age 78



Area Days Indicative Scope Planned 
Start Date

Actual 
Start Date

Final 
Report 
Issued

Status / Assurance 
Level Given

ELDC
Debtors, Council 
Tax, NNDR, Bank 
Reconciliation

Health & Safety            8 To ensure that the Council 
has effective health and 
safety arrangements in 
place that comply with 
relevant legislation and 
regulations

October 14 October 14 Draft issued 
Feb 15

Draft report stage

Recruitment & Retention              9 To review how the Council 
is addressing risks identified 
around staff recruitment and 
retention staff

May 14 May 2014 25 July 14 Final report issued

Insurance         6 To ensure that the Council 
has effective arrangements 
in place to manage its 
insurable risks

October 14 October 14 15 January 
15

Final report issued

CPBS        10 Undertake a review of the 
governance, risk and 
internal control regime of the 
Company

August 14 August 14 Draft report stage

P
age 79



Area Days Indicative Scope Planned 
Start Date

Actual 
Start Date

Final 
Report 
Issued

Status / Assurance 
Level Given

Contract Management      10 To provide assurance that 
key contracts are managed 
effectively and monitored to 
confirm they are delivering 
as agreed

January 15 Postponed

Partnerships / Collaborative 
working 

       10 Assurance on the 
effectiveness of the 
Council's partnership / 
collaborative working 
arrangements and how 
collaborative working 
supports delivery of the 
Council's priorities and 
tackling the 'big issues' 
facing the Council.  
Transformation programme 
– actions following the peer 
review

December14 
/ January 15

January 15P
age 80



Area Days Indicative Scope Planned 
Start Date

Actual 
Start Date

Final 
Report 
Issued

Status / Assurance 
Level Given

Information Governance          5 Follow up review to confirm 
management actions from 
2013/14 audit have been 
implemented and review 
effectiveness of data 
security arrangements

October 14 October 14 5 January 
15

Final report issued 

Sub Total          101
Benefits Subsidy claim           25 Testing to support the 

external audit of the subsidy 
claim

June-August 
14

June 14 November 
14* 

Completion 
of 
workbooks.

Completed

Sub Total            25
Strategic Risk            0

Sub Total            0

Emerging Risks
Emerging risk contingency           24 To audit any significant 

emerging risks arising in the 
year.

Housing in Multiple 
Occupation 
HMO Audit (10 days)

October 14

November 
14

HMO Draft report 
issued.

P
age 81



Area Days Indicative Scope Planned 
Start Date

Actual 
Start Date

Final 
Report 
Issued

Status / Assurance 
Level Given

Sub Total            24
Other relevant Areas
Combined Assurance             0 Co-ordinating and updating 

assurances on the Council’s 
assurance map with service 
managers.  

October 
/November  
2014

This will be deferred 
for 14/15; risk 
management work 
will take place 
instead

Sub Total              0
ICT Audit.
ICT Audit
 Mobile Devices
 IT security

           20

(plus East 
Lindsey 
allocation)

IT security
Mobile devices
Strategy
ICT Programme/projects
Software
DR follow up

September 
14

December 
14

Draft report issued 
Mobile Devices

Field work in 
progress (other 
areas)

Sub Total           20
Non-Audit
Advice / liaison           6
Annual Report           1

P
age 82



Area Days Indicative Scope Planned 
Start Date

Actual 
Start Date

Final 
Report 
Issued

Status / Assurance 
Level Given

Audit Committee            6
Sub Total          13
Total Audit Plan for 
2014/15

         218

P
age 83



T
his page is intentionally left blank



SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL

Report of: Audit & Risk Manager– Audit Lincolnshire and Shared Manager 
Finance (SHDC)

To: Governance & Audit Committee – 10 March 2015

(Author: Lucy Pledge – (Head of Audit & Risk Management, Audit 
Lincolnshire) and Mark Finch – (Shared Manager Finance (SHDC))

Subject: Draft Internal Audit Plan 2015/16

Purpose: To present to the Committee the draft Internal Audit Plan for 
2015/16

Recommendation: 

1) That Members consider and approve the 2015-16 Internal Audit Plan

1.0 BACKGROUND AND KEY MESSAGES

1.1 The purpose of this report is to:

 Provide details and seek approval for the Internal Audit Plan 2015-16

Key Messages 

1.2. The Internal Audit Plan 15-16 has been developed with Management and a 
risk assessment of Council functions.  The detailed plan is attached at 
Appendix A

1.3 Internal Audit is a statutory service required under the Account and Audit 
regulations 2011.  We provide independent assurance designed to add value 
and improve how the Council operates.  We help the Council achieve its 
priorities and objectives by bringing a systematic, disciplined approach to 
evaluate and improve the management of risk, control and governance 
processes.

1.4 Our work is carried out in conformance with the UK Public Sector Internal 
Audit Standards.  These require that the scope of Internal Audit covers the 
whole range of the Council activities - seeking to provide an annual internal 
audit opinion on the governance, risk and internal control environment of the 
Council, which has been established to:

 Achieve strategic objectives
 Ensure effective and efficient operational systems and programmes
 Safeguard  assets and interests of all kinds (including risks that relate to 

work it undertakes through partnerships)

Page 85

Agenda Item 6.



 Ensure the reliability and integrity of financial and operational information
 Ensure economic, efficient and effective use of council resources
 Ensure compliance with established policies, procedures, laws, regulations 

and contracts

1.5 In developing the Internal Audit Plan we have:

 Taken into account management's assessment of risk (including those set 
out in strategic and operational risk registers)

 Obtained assurances present on the Council's critical systems and key 
projects 

 Used our own risk assessment against each activity assessing their 
significance, sensitivity and materiality – ranking the activity as high, 
medium or low risk. 

1.6 Our aim is to align our work with other assurance functions – seeking to look 
at different ways of leveraging assurance to help us to maximise the best use 
of the Internal Audit resource and other assurance functions in the Council.

1.7 Our audit plan has been considered by CMT.

2.0 OPTIONS

2.1 Consider the content of the Internal Audit Plan 2015-16 and recommend 
approval.

3.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION

3.1 To ensure that appropriate internal audit work is scheduled for 2015-16, as 
part of the Council’s contract with Audit Lincolnshire for the delivery of Internal 
Audit services.

4.0 EXPECTED BENEFITS 

4.1 To meet the terms of reference of Internal Audit and the Governance and 
Audit Committee, and ensure legal compliance.

Page 86



5.0 IMPLICATIONS

5.1 Carbon Footprint / Environmental Issues

5.1.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications.

5.2 Constitution & Legal

5.2.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications.

5.3 Contracts

5.3.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications.

5.4 Corporate Priorities

5.4.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications.

5.5 Crime and Disorder 

5.5.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications.

5.6 Equality and Diversity / Human Rights

5.6.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications.

5.7 Financial 

5.7.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications.

5.8 Risk Management 

5.8.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications.

5.9 Staffing

5.9.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications.

5.10 Stakeholders / Consultation / Timescales

5.10.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications.

6.0 WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED

6.1 Not applicable

7.0 ACRONYMS 

7.1 CMT – Corporate Management Team

Page 87



Background papers:- None

Lead Contact Officer

Name/Post: Lucy Pledge – Audit and Risk Manager - Audit Lincolnshire
Telephone Number: 01522 553692
Email: lucy.pledge@lincolnshire.gov.uk

Director / Officer who will be attending the Meeting:  
Lucy Pledge –Audit & Risk Manager – Audit Lincolnshire; 
John Scott – Audit Manager, Audit Lincolnshire
Mark Finch – Shared Manager, Finance

Key Decision: No 

Exempt Decision: No 

Appendices attached to this report: Appendix 1 – Internal Audit Plan 2015-16

Page 88



Page 1 of 5

 
Public Sector Auditing…. Private sector Thinking

South Holland District 
Council

Internal Audit Plan
2015/16

 Draft   v2                                                   
                  13/01/15

P
age 89

http://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&frm=1&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0CAcQjRw&url=http://www.accountancyage.com/aa/feature/2377755/new-audit-threshold-reform-a-threat-or-an-opportunity&ei=B8OzVM_0E6W27gbJ-4HQDw&bvm=bv.83339334,d.ZGU&psig=AFQjCNG1m6ojLR31iKjM-_YXS359sEai2w&ust=142115334862


Lucy Pledge CMIIA
Head of Audit
01522 553692
lucy.pledge@lincolnshire.gov.uk

John Scott
Audit Manager
01522 553652
john.scott@lincoln.gov.uk

Clare Pollard
Senior Auditor
01775 764459
Clare.pollard@lincolnshire.gov.uk

CONTENTS                                           Page

Introduction                                                                  1

Our Internal Audit Strategy                                       1- 2

Draft Internal Plan 2015/16                                          3

Performance & Quality Assurance Framework       4

Fees                                                                               5

Appendices:

Appendix A – Audit Lincolnshire – Planning Risk Assessment

Appendix B - Cyclical Due Diligence Plan                      

Appendix C – Draft Internal Audit Plan 2015/16

Appendix D – Quality Assurance Programme

Appendix D – Quality Assurance Programme

P
age 90

mailto:lucy.pledge@lincolnshire.gov.uk
mailto:john.scott@lincoln.gov.uk
mailto:Clare.pollard@lincolnshire.gov.uk


P
age 91



Page 1 of 5

Introduction
1. This report summarises the proposed work of Internal Audit for 

2015/16.  The aim is to give a high level overview of areas we are 
likely to cover during the year – giving you an opportunity to 
comment on the proposals.

2. The audit plan has been developed to enable us to respond to 
changes during the year.  Whist every effort will be made to deliver 
the plan, we recognise that we need to be flexible and prepared to 
revise audit activity – responding to changing circumstances or 
emerging risks.  The plan is therefore a statement of intent – our 
liaison meetings with senior management will enable us to firm up 
audit activity during the year.

3. Internal Audit is a statutory service required under the Account 
and Audit regulations 2011.  We provide independent assurance 
designed to add value and improve how the Council operates.  We 
help the Council achieve its priorities and objectives by bringing a 
systematic, disciplined approach to evaluate and improve the 
management of risk, control and governance processes.

4. Our work is carried out in conformance with the UK Public Sector 
Internal Audit Standards.  These require that the scope of Internal 
Audit covers the whole range of the Council activities - seeking to 
provide an annual internal audit opinion on the governance, risk 
and internal control environment of the Council, which has been 
established to:

 Achieve strategic objectives

 Ensure effective and efficient operational systems and programmes

 Safeguard  assets and interests of all kinds (including risks that 
relate to work it undertakes through partnerships)

 Ensure the reliability and integrity of financial and operational 
information

 Ensure economic, efficient and effective use of council resources

 Ensure compliance with established policies, procedures, laws, 
regulations and contracts

Our Internal Audit Strategy 

5. Our Internal Audit strategy has been developed to take into account 
management's assessment of risk (including those set out in strategic 
and operational risk registers) and the assurances present on the 
Council's critical systems and key projects (the Council's assurance 
map).   

6. We also use our own risk assessment against each activity assessing 
their significance, sensitivity and materiality – ranking the activity as 
high, medium or low risk.  This allows us to prioritise possible areas to 
be included in the plan on the basis of risk.  A copy of our risk 
assessment methodology is attached in Appendix A.  

7. Our aim is to align our work with other assurance functions – seeking to 
look at different ways of leveraging assurance to help us to maximise 
the best use of the Internal Audit resource and other assurance 
functions in the Council.

8. We intend to leverage assurance from these other sources to enable 
the Head of Internal Audit to provide their Annual Audit Opinion on the 
Council’s governance, risk and control framework for 2016.

9. We have identified the level of assurances in place by using the 'Three 
lines of defence (assurance)' model – see Figure 1.

P
age 92



Page 2 of 5

Figure 1:  The three lines of defence (assurance) model 

10. Although we undertake a risk assessment each year to develop our risk 
based audit plan – there are a number of key processes that are 
fundamental to the running of the Council which we review on a cyclical 
basis – usually once every 3 years.  These systems are shown in 
Appendix B.  

11. Analysing the assurance map may identify a number of specific critical 
and low risk activities - which we do not have the resources to review.  
The Audit and Accounts Committee can specifically request 
management to provide assurance on these areas.  Once the 
assurance map has been agreed we will provide a further report to 
Audit and Accounts Committee with more details.

12. We co-ordinate our work on key financial systems with the Council’s 
External Auditors, KPMG.  We work to a joint working protocol which 
sets out where the External Auditor seeks to place reliance on our work.  
This ensures that the Council gets the most out of its combined audit 
resource – keeping audit fees low.  

P
age 93



Page 3 of 5

Draft Internal Audit Plan 2015/16                      
13. The type of areas included in the plan for 2015/16 is shown in figure 2 with the proposed audits detailed in Appendix C.  A schedule of audits will be 

developed with management once the plan has been approved.    

          

32%

14%

8%

24%

5%

6%

11%

0% 5% 10% 15% 20% 25% 30% 35%

Due Diligence

Critical Systems

ICT

Emerging Issues & Key Risks

Combined Assurance

Non Audit

Subsidy work

Analysis of IA Resource

    

Figure 2 – Analysis of Internal Audit Resource (showing % split) 

P
age 94



Page 4 of 5

Our Performance & Quality Assurance Framework

14. Audit Lincolnshire operates in conformance with standards of best 
practice applicable to Internal Audit - in particular the UK Public Sector 
Internal Audit Standards and the CIPFA Local Government Application 
Note.  Our audit team offer a wide depth of knowledge and experience 
gained across different organisations.  We promote excellence and 
quality through our audit process, application of our Quality Assurance 
Framework (Appendix D) and our training and development 
programme. 

15. Our Quality Assurance Framework includes all aspects of the Internal 
Audit Activity – including governance, professional practice and 
communication.  

16. Our Internal Audit Charter sets out the nature, role, responsibilities and 
authority of the Internal Audit service within the Council – this was 
approved by the Audit Committee.  

17. Internal Audit remains sufficiently independent of the activities that it 
audits to enable auditors to perform their duties in such a way that 
allows them to make impartial and effective professional judgements 
and recommendations. 

18. We use a number of ways to monitor our performance, respond to 
feedback and seek opportunities to improve.  Evidence of the quality of 
our audits is gained through feedback from auditees and the results of 
supervision and quality assurance undertaken as part of our audit 
process. 

19. Our performance measures are set out below in Figure 3 for 
information:

Figure 3 – Our performance measures

Performance Indicator Target

Percentage of plan completed. 100% (revised plan)
Percentage of key financial systems completed. 100% 

Percentage of recommendations agreed.* 100% 
Percentage of recommendations implemented.* 100%
Timescales  Draft report issued within 10 working days of 

completing audit. 
 Final report issued within 5 working days of closure 

meeting / receipt of management responses.
 Period taken to complete audit – 80% completed 

within 2 months from fieldwork commencing to the 
issue of the draft report.

Client Feedback on Audit (average) Good to excellent

* Achievement of the performance 
measures on recommendations 
agreed and implemented are not 
within our control.  These are 
reported so the Governance & Audit 
Committee can see what actions 
management have taken.  The details 
of any recommendations not agreed 
will be included in the executive 
summary and report to Committee.

P
age 95



Page 5 of 5

Fees
20.Our internal audit fee is determined through the pricing schedule of the contract.  Before commencement of any additional work requested an estimate will 

be provided of the cost.

1  Based on 193 days

Area 2015 / 16 2014 / 15 

Internal Audit £53,0751 £53,075

Subsidy Testing £6,875 £6,875

P
age 96



Appendix A – Audit Lincolnshire – Planning Risk Assessment Methodology

                                                                                                       

           
  

2 £500k for County
3 £5m for County

Value / Volume
This assessment is based on either the cost to the council, the volume of 
transactions that the activity is handling or a combination of the two
0 – Not material
1 – Minor importance (up to £100k2 budget and approx. weekly transactions)
2 – Important (up to £1m3 budget and up to daily transactions)
3 – Material (over £1m budget and multiple transactions daily)

Significance
This assessment reflects how important the activity is to the authority and its 
residents
0 – not significant
1 – Minor significance
2 – Significant
3 – Very significant

Audit rating
0 – recent review no significant findings (full / substantial)
1 – Recent review with findings (limited)
2 – Not recently reviewed (3 years)
3 – Recent review – number of significant findings (No assurance)

Changes to people / systems
0 – no changes
1 – Minor changes
2 – Significant changes
3 – New system or team

Sensitivity / Profile (Risk)
This assessment is about the impact if things went wrong, how much interest 
would there be and how much would this impact on reputation
0 – low (internal system)
1 – Medium profile
2 – High profile

Other assurance
Other assurances we have identified during the mapping process and how 
much reliance we can place on these.
0 – high level of assurance – e.g. Snr mgmt. oversight / management 
reporting / activities / external review / scrutiny
1 – Moderate level of assurance – management assurance
2 – Low level of assurance – new area – assurance unknown – emerging risk

Risk score Risk score Risk score
1 7 12
2 8 13
3 9 14
4 10 15
5 11
6

Low Med High

P
age 97



Appendix B – South Holland District Council Cyclical Due Diligence Work

This appendix lists those financial and other due diligence audits that are conducted on a 3 year (Financial) or 5 year (Other due diligence) 
cycle. 

* The areas marked with an asterix are also reviewed annually as part of “Key Control Testing” for our Financial Control Opinion

System Opinion Last audited
System 

Changes

Year 1

2014/15

 Year 2

2015/16

Year 3

2016/17

Financial Due Diligence

Income Collection incl Cash 
Receipting* Effective 2014/15 No

         

Income areas ( SHDC)             

Bank* Substantial 2013/14 No       

Budgetary Control/Management Substantial 2012/13 No       

General Ledger Substantial 2012/13 No       

Budget prep and financial strategy Substantial 2011/12 No         

Creditors* Substantial 2013/14 No
   

Debtors* Substantial 2013/14 No      

Payroll*

Audit rolled onto 
14/15 (currently 

underway) 2013/14

Self-service still 
to be 

implemented
    

 

P
age 98



System Opinion Last audited
System 

Changes

Year 1

2014/15

 Year 2

2015/16

Year 3

2016/17

Treasury Management  Full 2013/14 No           

Property, Plant and Equipment* New area

New software for 
Fixed Asset 

Register  
    

Council Tax* Substantial 2013/14 No      

NNDR* Substantial 2013/14 No  

Benefits* Substantial 2013/14 No  

Housing Rents Full 2012/13 Yes   

* The areas marked with an asterix are 
also reviewed annually as part of “Key 
Control Testing” for our Financial 
Control Opinion Substantial 2013/14  

  

Other Due Diligence

CPBS
Some Improvement 2014/15 

 Procurement
Limited 2013/14  Legislative    

VAT/Tax
New Area No 

Insurance
Some Improvement 2014/15 No 

Grants Received
New Area No 

Counter Fraud
Substantial 2012/13 No 

P
age 99



System Opinion Last audited
System 

Changes

Year 1

2014/15

 Year 2

2015/16

Year 3

2016/17

Risk management
Substantial 2013/14

No longer using 
P+ 

Project /Programme Management
Limited 2012/13 No 

Performance management 
Limited 2012/13

No longer using 
P+ 

Contract management
Limited 2009/10 No 

Financial regulations & management

NB Financial regulations and 
procedures are also considered for 
each audit where they may be 
applicable

New Area No 

Equality & Diversity
New Area No 

Health & Safety
Some Improvement 2014/15 No 

Information Governance

Limited

Follow up 14/15 2013/14 No 

Code of Corp Governance
Substantial 2012/13 No

Partnerships
Substantial 2009/10 No 

Corporate planning
New Area No 

Business Continuity Limited 2013/14 No 

P
age 100



System Opinion Last audited
System 

Changes

Year 1

2014/15

 Year 2

2015/16

Year 3

2016/17

Emergency Planning Substantial 2009/10 No 

Human Resources Some Improvement

Recruitment 2014/15 

Legislative
    

  

Legal Services

Note that legal / regulatory compliance 
is also reviewed as part of each 
specific internal audit where applicable

New Area* 

P
age 101



Appendix C – Draft Internal Audit Plan2015/16

Area Indicative Scope Planned 
Days

Critical Service Areas
Those areas identified by senior management as having the most impact on successful delivery of Council priorities or whose failure could 
result in significant damage to reputation, financial loss, impact on people (risks)
Construction Services Unit (CSU) This review will focus on the work of the CSU (Construction Services Unit) 

which is the Council’s responsive repair function. We shall examine the 
effectiveness of repairs delivery to tenants and leaseholders which contribute 
to the Council’s wider housing objectives.

Housing – Planned Maintenance We will review the housing planned maintenance programme to ensure 
effective management and delivery of housing modernisation projects, which 
support the Council’s Housing objectives. 

Contract Management Rolled forward audit from 2014/15

To provide assurance that key contracts are managed effectively

Sub Total 34
Due Diligence

- Those systems that support the running of the Council and ensure compliance with key policies

Key Control Testing Delivery of key control testing to enable the Head of Internal Audit to form 
an opinion on the Council’s financial control environment.

Budget management 
General Ledger
Key income areas / collection and banking
Housing Rents
Housing Benefits

Key systems that support the running of the Council's business and ensure 
compliance with corporate policies and legal requirements.  

How often Internal Audit review these activities depends on previous 
assurance opinions, when we last examined the activity and if there has 
been any significant changes to the system or senior management.  We 
also consider the requirements of External Audit.

P
age 102



Project/programme management follow up
Performance management follow up
Procurement follow up 
Sub Total 76

Area Indicative Scope Planned Days

ICT audit
ICT plays a vital role in supporting the Council's business and customer interface.  During the year we will meet with the 
Interim IT Manager and the Head of Information and Customer Access to determine the best areas to focus audit resources.

Some possible areas may include Software management – responding to customer needs (end to end processes).

20

Sub Total 20
Emerging Issues and Key Risks
To enable Internal Audit to respond to changes during the year we will meet regularly with Senior Management to agree 
which areas to focus our audit assurance work. 

The following areas have been agreed with CMT:

 Asset and Property management - we will provide assurance around the ability to deliver Corporate Asset 
aspirations, including asset utilisation.

 People management – we will examine the relationship between the Council and CPBS to assess the effectiveness 
of Human Resources service delivery by CPBS

 Legal services – we will undertake a review of legal services (specific focus to be agreed with CMT).

P
age 103



Other audits will be agreed during the year, dependent on risk,  and may include audits in the following areas

 Environmental Services
 Corporate Improvement and Performance
 Planning
 Economic Development and Growth
 Housing
 Public Protection
 Asset and Property Management
 Business Rates
 People Management
 Key projects / benefits realisation

Subtotal

56

Area Indicative Scope Planned 
Days

Other relevant Areas
Combined Assurance Updating assurances on the Council’s assurance map with service 

managers and helping to co-ordinating the annual status report.
10

Follow up of Recommendations 3
Sub Total 13            
Non-Audit
Advice & Liaison 6
Annual Report 2
Audit Committee 6
Sub Total 14
Grand Total
Other work 213
Subsidy claim testing 25

P
age 104



Audit Managers 
Principal
Auditors

Quality 
Assurance

Audit Managers

Review

 

Supervision
Individual 
Auditors

HIA

Quality 

Periodic quality assurance assessments

 Obtain periodic assurance that engagement planning, fieldwork 
conduct and reporting /communicating results  adheres to audit 
practice standards

 Provide HIA with quarterly highlight reports on outcome of reviews

.

Ongoing monitoring – quality built into the audit 
process

Quality checks and oversight are undertaken throughout 
the audit engagement ensuring that processes and 
practice are consistently applied and working well.

, 
 

 Conduct all audit engagements in accordance with audit 
practice standards / PSIAS

 Behave at all times in accordance with the Code of Ethics 
/ Code of Conduct 

 Promote the standards and their use throughout the 
Internal Audit activity

 Commitment to delivering quality services  

Quality outcomes / process designed to deliver a 
consistently high quality audit service to our clients - fit 
for purpose / meet client expectations / conform to 

PSIAS & 

Quality 
Assurance

Quality 
Plan

HIA

Annual self- assessment 

  Head of Internal Audit - develop & maintain Quality Assurance 
Improvement Programme (QAIP)  & improvement action plan

 Focus on evaluating conformance with Internal Audit Charter, 
definition of Internal Audit, Code of Ethics & the Standards 

 Arrange an External Assessment – co-ordinated with Audit 
Committee (planned for 2015)

 
/ 

 Obtain on-going assurance that that engagement planning, 
fieldwork conduct and reporting /communicating results  
adheres to audit practice standards

 Undertake engagement supervision and review.   The extent of 
supervision needed will depend on the proficiency and 
experience of the internal auditors and the complexity of the 
engagement.

Quality improvement plan - HIA reporting to Audit Committee 
on the outcome of Quality Assurance – with improvement 
action plan and any significant non-conformance included in 
the Annual Report / Annual Governance Statement 

 Plan 

&

Supervision

Review

 

Individual 
Auditors

Principal
Auditors

&

Appendix D – Quality Assurance Programme

P
age 105



T
his page is intentionally left blank



SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL

Report of: Shared Finance Manager

To: Governance and Audit Committee 10 March 2015

(Author: Mark Finch Shared Manager Finance

Subject: Audit Mandatory Enquiries

Purpose: To confirm the response to the external audit mandatory enquiries

Recommendation: 
1) That Members approve the response to the external audit mandatory enquiries

1.0 BACKGROUND

1.1 In order to comply with a number of International Standards of Auditing, external auditors 
are required to obtain an understanding on how those charged with governance exercise 
oversight of management's processes in relation to fraud, laws and regulations and going 
concern. To assist this work, which forms part of the annual audit, the external auditor 
issues a number of questions to those charged with governance. In previous years these 
enquiries have been made directly to the Chairman of Governance and Audit Committee. In 
order to recognise the whole committee’s governance role, this year these audit enquiries 
are being brought before the committee.

1.2 Appendix A sets out the enquiries to those charged with governance. It has been pre-
populated to a large extent where possible, following discussion between the Chairman of 
Governance and Audit Committee and the Finance Manager. However one question on 
fraud asks for an opinion, therefore it would be inappropriate to pre-empt the Committee’s 
response.

1.3 Members are asked to consider these responses and to be satisfied that they correspond to 
the committee’s own view of affairs, or whether the responses require modification.

2.0 OPTIONS

2.1 To approve the responses to the mandatory enquiries so that these can be issued to the 
external auditor.

2.2 To make amendments to the responses so that these can be issued to the external auditor.

3.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION

3.1 It is good practice for a collective view to be formed as this promotes good corporate 
governance arrangements.

4.0 EXPECTED BENEFITS

4.1 This demonstrates the role that Governance and Audit Committee has at centre of the 
authority's governance arrangements).

Page 107

Agenda Item 7.



5.0 IMPLICATIONS

5.1 Carbon Footprint / Environmental Issues

5.1.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications.

5.2 Constitution & Legal

5.2.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications.

5.3 Contracts

5.3.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications.

5.4 Corporate Priorities

5.4.1 The Audit Committee, through its terms of reference, helps to ensure that the service areas 
and risks reported are working towards the efficient and effective delivery of the Council’s 
corporate priorities.

5.5 Crime and Disorder 

5.5.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications.

5.6 Equality and Diversity / Human Rights

5.6.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications.

5.7 Financial 

5.7.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications.

5.8 Health & Wellbeing

5.8.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications.

5.9 Risk Management 

5.9.1 The Committee supports the oversight of the Council’s risk management framework, which 
will in turn ensure that the Council’s key risks are accurately reviewed and addressed. This 
is ensured by following best practice and adopting sound terms of reference.

5.10 Staffing

5.10.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications.

5.11 Stakeholders / Consultation / Timescales

5.11.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications.

6.0 WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED

6.1 None

Page 108



7.0 ACRONYMS 

7.1 None

Background papers:- None

Lead Contact Officer
Name and Post: Mark Finch – Shared Manager Finance
Telephone Number: 01775 761161
Email: Mark.finch@breckland-sholland.gov.uk

Key Decision: No

Exempt Decision: No

This report refers to a Mandatory Service / Discretionary Service

Appendices attached to this report: 
Appendix A Enquiries to those charged with governance

Page 109



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 of 2

Appendix A

Category Short 
Description

Detailed Description Comments (optional)

Fraud REQUIRED 
Programs and 
controls to 
prevent, detect 
and deter fraud 
– oversight by 
those charged 
with 
governance 

How do those charged with 
governance exercise effective 
oversight of management's 
processes for identifying and 
responding to the risk of fraud in the 
entity and internal controls 
management has established to 
mitigate these fraud risks?

The Governance and Audit 
Committee approves the 
Internal Audit programme 
on an annual basis and 
receives regular reports 
from the Head of Audit and 
Risk Management on 
progress against the plan 
as well as the outcomes 
from the audit reviews. The 
committee timetable 
schedules a report on 
fraudulent activity detected 
by the authority during the 
previous year which is 
presented to the 
committee.

Fraud REQUIRED 
Management's 
assessment of 
fraud risks 
including the 
nature, extent 
and frequency 
of such 
assessment

What are your views about fraud 
risks at the entity?

Fraud REQUIRED 
Actual, 
suspected or 
alleged 
instances of 
fraud

Are you aware of or have you 
identified any instances of actual, 
suspected, or alleged fraud, 
including misconduct or unethical 
behavior related to financial 
reporting or misappropriation of 
assets? If so, have the instances 
been appropriately addressed and 
how have they been addressed?

No instances of actual, 
suspected, or alleged fraud 
in relation to financial 
reporting and 
misappropriation of assets 
were identified in the last 
financial year, although a 
fraud report is planned to 
be presented to committee 
in June which will update 
this situation.

Laws and 
regulations

REQUIRED 
Compliance 
with legal and 

How is the entity complying with the 
legal and regulatory framework?

The Council has appointed 
a Monitoring Officer to 
ensure it complies with the 

Page 111



Page 2 of 2

Appendix A

Category Short 
Description

Detailed Description Comments (optional)

regulatory 
framework

legal and regulatory 
framework. All committee 
reports contain a section 
on legal implications to 
ensure that members are 
made aware of any legal 
considerations to assist the 
decision making process.

Page 112



SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL

Report of: Executive Director of Commissioning and Governance

To: Governance and Audit Committee – 10 March 2015

Author: Business Intelligence Officer

Subject: Quarterly Risk Report

Purpose: To update the committee on the state of risk management within the 
organisation

Recommendation: 

1) That the report is noted.

1.0 BACKGROUND

1.1. The last risk report to the Governance and Audit Committee was in December 2014 and over the 
previous 3 months; officers have continued to manage operational risks through service area risk 
registers.  Similarly, strategic risks although managed through CMT are held within the strategic risk 
register.

1.2. The strategic and operational risk registers, for completeness are reviewed formally on a quarterly 
basis. In addition to this formal update, Officers, CMT and other stakeholders can include new, 
update or propose the removal of risks, in line with business needs at any time.

1.3. The updated strategic risk register includes 10 strategic risks (see Appendix A). These cover the 
over-arching risks that may affect the strategic direction of the council, rather than risks linked to 
business continuity or those that affect discreet service areas.

1.4.The review of strategic risk is a standing item on the CMT agenda (quarterly). In addition,
risks are monitored at the new, officer-lead Risk Boards on a monthly basis. These boards
are chaired by the Executive Director for Place and the first took place on 26 February 2015.

1.5. Risks are grouped into two categories:

1.5.1 Strategic risks that could affect the whole and long-term plan of the council, these risks could 
fundamentally affect upon:

 Our reputation
 The organisation we are
 The dependable, accountable delivery of public services

1.5.2 Operational risks (see Appendix B) concern the day-to-day activities in the delivery of functions and 
services.

1.6. Risks use a 3 X 3 matrix through a numerical number that combines the impact score of the risk 
occurring, with the likelihood score of it happening.  

Page 113

Agenda Item 8.



High

(3)
3 6 9

Medium

(2)
2 4 6

I
M
P
A
C
T

Low

(1)
1 2 3

Low

(1)

Medium

(2)

High

(3)

LIKELIHOOD

1.7.Risks fall into High, Medium or Low categories depending on their rating:

 High – rating of 6 or over
 Medium – rating between 3 and 4
 Low – rating of 2 or under

These are also identified by the following colours within our performance management data entry 
workbooks and reports:

High
Medium
Low

1.8. Ideally we would like to manage all risks down to the ‘Low’ rating and we try to achieve this 
through ‘controls’ that are put into place to reduce the likelihood of them occurring and/or the 
impact if they do happen.

1.9. In addition to trying to ‘control’ risks, we have to consider the fact that they may still occur, 
therefore we need to know what we would do to ‘mitigate’ any foreseeable damage that may occur 
as a result.

Risk Summary

1.10 This risk summary covers two areas:

Page 114



 The risk summary table shows the total number of risks by category and the percentage of 
high, medium and low risks within each category.

 The exceptions report, a detailed report to provide focus on high-level risks.

The risk champions may wish to feedback to the committee on any areas they feel are of particular 
concern.

Risk Summary Table (Previous ratings):

The risk position at the 30th September 2014 – Covering the period Quarter 2 2014/15

Risk Category
Total

Number of
Risks

% Low Risks % Medium Risks % High Risks

Strategic 9 11.11% (1) 55.56% (5) 33.33% (3)
Operational 64 43.75% (28) 48.44% (31) 7.81% (5)

Risk Summary Table (Current Ratings):

The risk position at the 31st December 2014 – Covering the period Quarter 3 2014/15
 

Risk Category
Total

Number of
Risks

% Low Risks % Medium Risks % High Risks

Strategic 10 20.00% (2) 50.00% (5) 30.00% (3)
Operational 65 40.90% (27) 37.88% (25) 9.09% (5)

NOTE: at the time of writing, updates for 8 risks (6 from Housing, 2 from Economic 
Development) had not been submitted. In Q2 their ratings were 3 Medium and 5 Low risks.

This tells us that: 

 Strategic risks are predominantly medium
 One strategic risk has been closed, two have been created
 Operational risks are predominantly medium and low level risks
 Two operational risks have been created within Environmental Health and Human resources
 One risk has been closed in Community Development
 One operational risk has increased from a medium to a high rating within Corporate 

Improvement and Performance
 Two operational risks have been reduced from medium to low rating within Environmental 

Services and Corporate Improvement and Performance

Therefore:

 Strategic Risk Overview: Overall rating is Medium
 Operational Risk Overview: Overall rating is evenly spread across Medium and Low

For Strategic Risks please see Appendix A.
For the Exceptions Report on Operational risks please see Appendix B.

2.0 OPTIONS

2.1 That the contents of the report are noted.

Page 115



3.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION

3.1 This report will allow Governance and Audit the guarantee that risks for the Council - be 
they Strategic or Operational - are managed in an effective manner.

4.0 EXPECTED BENEFITS

4.1 There are no expected benefits.

5.0 IMPLICATIONS

5.1 Carbon Footprint / Environmental Issues

5.1.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications. 

5.2 Constitution & Legal

5.2.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications.

5.3 Contracts

5.3.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications.

5.4 Corporate Priorities

5.4.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications.

5.5 Crime and Disorder 

5.5.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications.

5.6 Equality and Diversity / Human Rights

5.6.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications.

5.7 Financial 

5.7.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications.

5.8 Health & Wellbeing

5.8.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications.

5.9 Risk Management 

5.9.1 The report considers the authority’s Strategic and Operational risks.

5.10 Staffing

5.10.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications.

5.11 Stakeholders / Consultation / Timescales

Page 116



5.11.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications.

6.0 WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED

6.1 No wards or communities are affected

7.0 ACRONYMS 

7.1 CMT – Corporate Management Team

Background papers:- None

Lead Contact Officer
Name and Post: Christopher Dean, Business Intelligence Officer
Telephone Number: 01362 656881
Email: Christopher.dean@breckland-sholland.gov.uk

Director / Officer who will be attending the Meeting

Name and Post: Christopher Dean, Business Intelligence Officer

Key Decision: No

Exempt Decision: No

This report refers to a Discretionary Service 

Appendices attached to this report: 

Appendix A South Holland District Council Strategic Risk Register (Q3, 
2014-15)

Appendix B Exceptions from South Holland District Council Operational Risk 
Register (Q3, 2014-15)

Page 117



This page is intentionally left blank



1

South Holland District Council - Strategic Risks 2014/15

Service Area
R
is
k 
R
ef
er
en

ce

D
at
es
 A
dd
ed

D
at
es
 C
lo
se
d

Risk Title Description Risk Consequences Risk
Owner 

Inherent
Risk
Impact

Inherent
Risk
Likelihood

Inherent
Risk
Rating

Previous
Risk
Impact
2013/14

Previous
Risk
Likelihood
2013/14

Previous
Risk
Rating
2013/14

Previous
Risk
Letter
2013/14

Proximity Existing Controls (What is being done to
avoid this)

Mitigating Actions (What will be done if this
occurs)

Executive
Director of
Place  S

 - 
01

01
/0
2/
20
14

Medium Term
Financial Strategy.

Medium term financial
strategy demonstrates
a lack of sustainability
over the medium term
as a result of central
government funding
reductions. An
efficiency programme,
reviews or income
streams need to be
developed and
implemented in order
to address future
funding gaps.

This would result in the
need to make cuts or
further efficiencies

Julie
Kennealy 3 3 9 3 3 9 H Ongoing

• Develop longer term transformation
programme
• Shared services
• Financial planning
• Financial modelling
• VFM/Efficiency Strategy
• Reserves
• Control of payroll costs  
• Lump sum payment to Lincolnshire County
Council Pension Fund included in budget.
• Keep a watching brief on Central Govt
measures to reduce impact of public sector
pension schemes 

• Early awareness of Government
proposals
• Identify low priority services and make
service reductions in those areas

 Executive
Director of

Commissioning
and Governance

S
 - 
02

01
/0
2/
20
14 Failure to deliver the

Council's Corporate
Priorities.

Failure to deliver the
Council’s corporate
priorities as set out in
the corporate plan
2011 - 15.

Would lead to missed
targets and failure to
deliver objectives and
may result in the
Council suffering
reputational damage
and a failure to deliver
priorities to residents.

Maxine
O'Mahony 2 2 4 2 2 4 M Ongoing

• Performance Management Framework
development is continuing
• Regular performance reporting
• Corporate priorities reviewed and set
against corporate plan
• Regular communication regarding
performance communicated to all staff
• Preparation for a 4 year corporate plan
starting 2015 has commenced
• Recruitment to vacant posts has
commenced
▪ Review and restructure team to ensure
corporate plan has regular reviews

Executive
Director of
Place S

 - 
03

01
/0
2/
20
14

Reduction in discount
in second year of local
Council Tax Support
Scheme leads to
reduced collection of
Council Tax.

Introduction of local
Council Tax Support
Scheme leads to
reduced collection of
Council Tax.

•  Lower Council Tax
receipts
• Financial impact on
Council budget
• A reduction in the
Council Tax base
(caused by changes in
number of claimants)

Julie
Kennealy 3 3 9 2 3 6 H Ongoing

• Monitor collection through the monthly
CPBS performance reports
• Reserve created to help with potential initial
pressures / timing pressures
• Review scheme - opportunity to amend on
an annual basis.
• After the first full year of running the new
scheme there will be more data and
statistics available in order to assess the
long term impact of scheme changes 

Executive
Director of
Place S

 - 
04

01
/0
2/
20
14

Business Rates
Retention Scheme.

Business rates
retention scheme
leaves the Council
exposed to changes  in
the business tax base
and collection
performance.
Exposure to los of
rates if re-rating of
power stations occurs

• Reduced levels of
income
• Financial impact on
Council budget

Julie
Kennealy 3 3 9 3 3 9 H Ongoing

• Monitor collection through the monthly
CPBS performance reports
• Reserve created to help with potential initial
pressures / timing pressures
• After the first full year of running the new
scheme there will be more data and
statistics available in order to assess the
long term impact of scheme changes
• Outstanding appeal on two gas fired power
stations could have a significant impact on
retained business rates reducing income to
safety net levels.   

P
age 119



2

South Holland District Council - Strategic Risks 2014/15

Service Area
R
is
k 
R
ef
er
en

ce

D
at
es
 A
dd
ed

D
at
es
 C
lo
se
d

Risk Title Description Risk Consequences Risk
Owner 

Inherent
Risk
Impact

Inherent
Risk
Likelihood

Inherent
Risk
Rating

Previous
Risk
Impact
2013/14

Previous
Risk
Likelihood
2013/14

Previous
Risk
Rating
2013/14

Previous
Risk
Letter
2013/14

Proximity Existing Controls (What is being done to
avoid this)

Mitigating Actions (What will be done if this
occurs)

Executive
Director of
Place S

 - 
05

01
/0
2/
20
14

Ending of Disabled
Facilities Grants
payments to district
councils, with funds
transferring to Better
Care funding stream
(integrated health and
social care pot)

Existing funding
arrangements for
DFG’s where central
government makes a
funding award directly
to housing authorities
each year will end in
14/15. And from 15/16
the funds will transfer
to the Better Care
funding regime. There
will no longer be any
dedicated funding for
the Council to
undertake this work –
there will however
remain a clear
statutory responsibility
to undertake disabled
adaptations. There is
an expectation that
organisations involved
will work together and
make services more
integrated

The Council will have
to draw entirely  on its
own existing available
revenue  funding to
meet the statutory
requirements under
DFG regulations

Julie
Kennealy 2 2 4 2 2 4 M

Engage with appropriate stakeholders
including LCC and the CCG to make the
case that at least existing funding levels
should be maintained and that the Council
participates in devising proposals to
integrate these services with health and
social care providers.                                     

Executive
Director of
Place S

 - 
07

01
/0
2/
20
14 Failure to contribute to

the growth of existing
businesses in the
district. 

Failure to contribute to
the growth of existing
businesses in the
districts and support
inward investment. 

• Reduced business
rate levels
• Poor job growth
• Poor resource
efficiency
• Poor investment by
SME's

Julie
Kennealy 1 2 2 1 2 2 L Ongoing

• Economic Development activity engaging
with local business in order to provide
support and assist development.
• Grants for Growth - support for SMEs,
providing practical help and financial
assistance to help them reduce costs and
increase competitiveness and resilience.

 Executive
Director of

Commissioning
and Governance

S
 - 
08

01
/0
2/
20
14

Failure to maximise
trading opportunities.

Failure to maximise
trading opportunities.

• Lack of exploitation of
assets and
opportunities, e.g.
trading arms (CPBS)
• Trading arms
complicate the
business 

Maxine
O'Mahony 2 2 4 2 2 4 M Ongoing

• Business plans will be developed for all
trading platforms / trading opportunities.
• Support continued growth of Compass
Point Business Services (CPBS) 

Executive
Director of

Commissioning
and Governance

S
 - 
09

01
/0
2/
20
14 Staff recruitment and

retention at all levels
within both
organisations 

Staff recruitment and
retention at all levels
within both
organisations 

• Loss of key senior
staff
• Loss of staff in face
of economic growth
and more lucrative
opportunities
elsewhere
• Loss of staff
knowledge 

Maxine
O'Mahony 3 2 6 3 2 6 H Ongoing

• Annual staff surveys regarding shared
management and general staff issues.
• Programme of non-salary rewards to be
introduced for staff, being looked at 2014/15
• Staff training
• Providing support for staff to have a voice
within the authority - supporting the staff
forum which provides staff with the
opportunity to raise concerns. •  Setting up a
staff forum 

Assistant
Director of
Community S

 - 
11

01
/0
5/
20
14 Failure to effectively

implement  corporate
business continuity
plan

Failure to effectively
implement joint
corporate business
continuity plan

• Impact on delivery of
services
• Loss of IT systems
• Ineffective
communication
•  Failure to provide
suitable premises
•  Failure to provide
suitable premises

Rob
Walker 3 1 3 3 1 3 M Now

Business impact analysis in place; service
areas have business continuity plans in
place; business continuity plans to be
tested; out of hours procedures in place;
mutual aid / support arrangements in place
with Breckland Council and neighbouring
authorities; business continuity plans
reviewed on a regular basis through
business continuity group.

P
age 120



South Holland District Council - Operational Risks
2014/15

Q3 14/15
D
at
e 
Ad

de
d

D
at
e 
C
lo
se
d

Risk Title Description Risk
Consequences Risk Owner

Inherent
Risk
Impact

Inherent
Risk
Likelihood

Inherent
Risk
Rating

Previous
Risk
Impact
13/14

Previous
Risk
Likelihood
13/14

Previous
Risk
Rating
13/14

P
re
vi
ou
s 
R
is
k 
Le
tte
r

13
/1
4 Existing controls

(What is being done
to avoid this?)

Mitigating actions
(What will be
done if this
occurs?)

C
ur
re
nt
 R
is
k 
Im
pa
ct

C
ur
re
nt
 R
is
k 
Li
ke
lih
oo
d

C
ur
re
nt
 R
is
k 
sc
or
e

C
ur
re
nt
 R
is
k 
Le
tte
r

Comments

D
ire

ct
io
n 
of
 tr
av
el

Existing High Risks

01
/0
7/
20
13

Loss of
service
through
natural or
manmade
disaster
(flood, fire,
epidemic, riot
etc), utilities
breakdown,
major
equipment
breakdown,
building/
major
equipment
end of useful
life

Loss of service
through natural or
manmade disaster
(flood, fire,
epidemic, riot etc),
utilities breakdown,
major equipment
breakdown, building/
major equipment
end of useful life

Loss of service
including
cancellation of
events and hires

Loss of income

Reputational
damage

Damage to
irreplaceable
heritage items/
building

Claims for loss of
service
(contractors/
leaseholders)

Cost of re-opening

Phil Perry 3 2 6 3 2 6 H

• Maintenance
budgets adequate and
building management
regimes are effective
• Risk assessment/
facilities management
• Business continuity
planning
• Hire terms and
conditions limit risk
• Corporate insurance
provision???
• Capital investment
programme/ 

• Revert to
business
continuity plan
• Working with
users/ hirers/
partners to
manage impact
as much as
reasonably
possible

3 2 6 H
This risk has been
reviewed and no changes
identified.

⇦⇨

30
/0
4/
20
12

Capacity and
processes to
monitor
section 106
agreements

• Lost financial
opportunities
• Legal challenge
from developers
• Challenge from
the community

Thomson,
Vicky 2 2 4 3 2 6 H

•  Allocation of
resources to be
decided
•  Appointment of LSC

3 2 6 H

This risk has been
reviewed and no changes
have been identifies as a
result.

⇦⇨

31
/0
8/
20
10

Burial Space

Lack of space for
new burials as a
result cemetery
becoming full.

No space for burials
in Spalding
cemetery

Glen
Chapman 2 2 4 3 2 6 H

• Detailed plan of
spaces available.
• Acquisition of
additional land that is
to be available for use
by December 2013. 

• Use alternative
cemeteries  3 2 6 H

Risk has been reviewed
and no changes have
been identified. All
information in respect to
the planning application
to utilise the Chiltern
Drive Spalding open
space as the extension to
Spalding Cemetery is
with Planning for due
consideration. The
Planning decision and the
implication to Risk of that
decision will be reported
in Qtr 4.  

⇦⇨

01
/0
2/
20
13

Risk of
reliance on
3rd Party
Suppliers to
deliver key
elements of
ICT systems.

Risk of reliance on
3rd Party Suppliers
to deliver key
elements of ICT
systems.

IT Service unable to
deliver to
customers
expectations and
the service cannot
control the pace of
change.

Gary
Stephens 3 2 6 3 2 6 H

 • SLA's are included
in third party contracts
however the SLA's
can often be budget
dependant.

Judgement to be
taken on whether
one-time payment
appropriate.

3 2 6 H
This risk has been
reviewed and no changes
have been identified

⇦⇨

Increased Risks

P
age 121



31
/1
0/
20
11

Failure to
comply with
equalities
legislation and
guidelines

Failure to comply
with equalities
legislation and
guidelines

Results in
reputational
damage through
non-compliance
and potential legal
non-compliance

Greg
Pearson 3 3 9 3 1 3 M

• New EQIA's
• EQIA's required for
all committee reports
• Mandatory training at
inductions         

• Undertake a full
gap analysis of
Equality issues
and develop a
comprehensive
action plan

3 2 6 H

Risk likelihood increased
to '2' as Equalities Policy
is out of date and
requires review.  To be
progressed once new
post is filled in CIP Team.

⇧

Decreased Risks

31
/0
8/
20
10 Loss of

materials
recycling
facility

Loss of material
recycling facility.

Reduced levels of
recycling; increased
disposal at landfill
and associated
cost if an alternative
facility is not
immediately
available.

Emily Spicer 2 2 4 2 2 4 M

• Maintain effective
contract relationship.
• Knowledge of
alternative service
providers .
• Contract in place.     

• Lincolnshire
County Council
as disposal
authority are
responsible for
route for materials

2 1 2 L

A mixed dry recycling
contract has now been
awarded by Lincolnshire
County Council  to one
contractor for all districts
in Lincolnsire. This new
mixed dry recycling
contract will commence
1st April 2015. 

⇩

31
/1
0/
20
11

Ineffective
internal
performance
management
controls

Ineffective internal
performance
management
controls in the
absence of external
assessments leads
to falling
performance

Uncontrolled
reduction in levels
of performance
across service
areas and potential
reputational
damage and legal
non-compliance

Greg
Pearson 3 2 6 2 2 4 M

• New Performance
Management
Framework developed
• Performance Plus
system procured
• Development of
Programme Boards

• Enhance control
measures by
increasing
frequency of
performance
meetings
• Increase the
amount of items
scrutinised by
Programme
Boards

2 1 2 L

Risk likeihood reduced
from '2' to '1' following
introduction of
Performance Boards,
which have improved
performance
management controls.
Development work
underway on revised
performance framework
for 2015/16 also.

⇩

New Risks

01
/1
2/
20
14

Lone Working

Failure to provide
suitable controls to
mitigate the risk of
lone working and
the issues
associated with that
role, from health &
safety perspective.

That the authority
does not protected
its staff while
working n the
council’s behalf.

Adams, Phil 2 2 4

• Introduction of a
managed 24/7
monitoring systems,
which the officers
carry an IDenticom
card to assist in this
aspect

To purchase the
systems and
carryout suitable
training prior to
going live.

2 1 2 L

The Health & Safety
steering group, has
requested via the Health
& Safety officer to review
the number of lone
working devices being
used and operational and
invite other services to
review these devices for
their introduction where a
risk has been identified

⇩

17
/1
2/
20
14

Risk that not
all new
starters have
undertaken
mandatory
training

Risk that not all
relevant HR
legislation is
identified,
interpreted or
implemented on a
timely basis.

Reputation, impact
for employees,
could lead to
financial loss.

Wendy
Cundy 2 1 2 Corporate Induction

being planned

Mitigation actions
are only
considered when
risk rating is 6 or
higher.

2 1 2 L Induction scheme built
into HR work programme ⇦⇨

P
age 122



SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL

Report of: Democratic Services and Legal Manager

To: Governance and Audit Committee – 10 March 2015

(Author: Christine Morgan – Member Services Officer

Subject: Governance and Audit Committee Work Programme

Purpose: To set out the Work Programme of the Governance and Audit Committee

Recommendation: 

That the Committee gives consideration to the contents of this report and identifies any issues for 
discussion.

1.0 BACKGROUND

1.1 The Governance and Audit Committee regularly considers a variety of reports from Internal 
Audit, External Audit and the Section 151 Officer.

1.2 Many of these reports are considered at regular intervals, the majority being annually, half-
yearly or quarterly.

1.3 In addition to these reports, the Committee also considers issues on an ad-hoc basis with 
some reports arising from consideration of items at previous meetings.

1.4 Attached at Appendix 1 to this report is the Work Programme for the Governance and Audit 
Committee.  It lays out all the remaining meeting dates for the 2014/15 municipal year, and 
dates for the 2015/16 municipal year have now been added.  Alongside each of these 
meeting dates are issues considered by the Committee on a regular basis together with the 
author of the report, its purpose and whether it is mandatory, and the frequency with which 
it is considered.

1.5 Regular items have been transferred from the 2014/15 municipal year to the appropriate 
meeting dates for the new municipal year of 2015/16. Contributors are requested to confirm 
that the reports requested, and the meeting dates on which they are to be reported, is 
correct. 

1.6 It had been agreed that this Work Programme be a regular item for consideration on the 
Committee’s agenda, thus creating a formal document laying out the work of the Committee 
in a clear, structured and organised way.

1.7 The attached document contains items considered on a regular basis, and also any ad hoc 
issues as and when they arise, for example, issues raised at a meeting to be covered at a 
future meeting, and any one-off issues.

2.0 OPTIONS

2.1 To note and consider the current status of the Work Programme.

Page 123

Agenda Item 9.



3.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION

3.1 To allow Committee members to feed into the Work Programme on a regular basis, to 
ensure that it stays relevant and up to date.

4.0 EXPECTED BENEFITS

4.1 The Work Programme is a formal document laying out the work of the Committee in a clear, 
structured and organised way, thus providing members with up to date and relevant 
information.

5.0 IMPLICATIONS

5.1 Carbon Footprint / Environmental Issues

5.1.1 Carbon Footprint/Environmental implications have been considered and in the opinion of 
the author, there are none arising out of this report.

5.2 Constitution & Legal

5.2.1 Constitutional and Legal implications have been considered and in the opinion of the 
author, there are none arising out of this report. However, the Work Programme should 
assist in providing a clear programme of work for the Governance and Audit Committee in 
line with the requirements laid out in the Council’s Constitution.

5.3 Contracts

5.3.1 Contracts implications have been considered and in the opinion of the author, there are 
none arising out of this report.

5.4 Corporate Priorities

5.4.1 Corporate Priority implications have been considered and in the opinion of the author, there 
are none arising out of this report.

5.5 Crime and Disorder 

5.5.1 Crime and Disorder implications have been considered and in the opinion of the author, 
there are none arising out of this report.

5.6 Equality and Diversity / Human Rights

5.6.1 Equality and Diversity/Human Rights implications have been considered and in the opinion 
of the author, there are none arising out of this report.

5.7 Financial 

5.7.1 Financial implications have been considered and in the opinion of the author, there are 
none arising out of this report.

5.8 Health & Wellbeing

5.8.1 Health and Wellbeing implications have been considered and in the opinion of the author, 
there are none arising out of this report.

Page 124



5.9 Risk Management 

5.9.1 Risk Management implications have been considered and in the opinion of the author, 
there are none arising out of this report.  However, one of the roles of the Governance and 
Audit Committee is to monitor the effective development and operation of risk management 
and corporate governance in the Council and the Work Programme should assist in 
keeping track of risk issues.

5.10 Staffing

5.10.1 Staffing implications have been considered and in the opinion of the author, there are none 
arising out of this report.

5.11 Stakeholders / Consultation / Timescales

5.11.1 Stakeholder/Consultation/Timescales implications have been considered and in the opinion 
of the author, there are none arising out of this report.

6.0 WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED

6.1 No wards or communities will be affected by this report.

7.0 ACRONYMS 

7.1 None.

Background papers:- None

Lead Contact Officer
Name and Post: Christine Morgan (Democratic Services Officer)
Telephone Number: 01775 764454
Email: cmorgan@sholland.gov.uk

Key Decision: No 

Exempt Decision: No 

This report refers to a Mandatory Service 

Appendices attached to this report: 

Appendix A  Work Programme for the Governance and Audit Committee

Page 125



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX A

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT – CALENDAR OF WORK PROGRAMME ITEMS 2015/16

Date of Meeting Agenda item Author Purpose and whether mandatory Frequency

10 March 2015 Audit Plan External Audit External Audit Plan – Mandatory 
Approval

Annual

Grant Claims 2013/14 External Audit External Audit Certification of Grant 
Claims – Mandatory Approval

Annual

Internal Audit – Audit Plan Progress 
Report

Internal Audit To update Committee on progress of 
the plan.
Not mandatory, but part of 
Governance role.

Quarterly

Internal Audit Plan (plan for the year 
ahead)

Internal Audit Annual Internal Audit Workplan – 
Mandatory Approval

Annual

Audit Mandatory Enquiries Section 151 Officer To confirm the response of the 
external audit mandatory enquiries. 
External auditors are required to 
obtain an understanding on how those 
charged with governance exercise 
oversight of management’s processes 
in relation to fraud, laws and 
regulations and going concerns.
Good Practice

Annual

Business Continuity Update Report 
(report by exception) 
No report to this meeting.

Riana Rudland Part of Governance role – not 
mandatory

To each 
meeting

Risk Management Update Report (report 
by exception)

Christopher Dean Part of Governance role – not 
mandatory

To each 
meeting

25 June 2015 Annual Report (report on the past year)
2014-15

Internal Audit Internal Audit opinion to support draft 
Annual Governance Statement 
Mandatory

Annual

P
age 127



Date of Meeting Agenda item Author Purpose and whether mandatory Frequency

Internal Audit – Audit Plan Progress 
Report

Internal Audit To update Committee on progress of 
the plan.
Not mandatory, but part of 
Governance role.

Quarterly

Draft Annual Governance Statement 14-
15

Section 151 Officer Approval
Mandatory

Annual

Pre-Audit 14-15 Financial Statements Section 151 Officer To approve financial statements prior 
to release to External Audit
Mandatory

Annual

Annual Treasury Management Review Section 151 Officer To comply with Treasury 
Management Strategy
Mandatory

Annual

Fraud Report 2014-15 Section 151 Officer Part of Governance role – not 
mandatory

Annual

Business Continuity Update Report 
(report by exception)

Riana Rudland Part of Governance role – not 
mandatory

To each 
meeting

Risk Management Update Report (report 
by exception)

Chris Dean Part of Governance role – not 
mandatory

To each 
meeting

24 September 2015 ISO 260 Report 14/15 (previously know 
as Annual Governance report)

External Audit Mandatory report to those charged 
with Governance

Annual

Internal Audit – Audit Plan Progress 
Report

Internal Audit To update Committee on progress of 
the plan
Not mandatory, but part of 
Governance role.

Quarterly

Approval of Annual Governance 
Statement, for inclusion with the 
Council’s published financial statements, 
and approval of the audited 14/15 
financial statements

Section 151 Officer Mandatory – approval required Annual

Governance and Audit Committee Self 
Assessment

Finance Manager For confirmation.  
Good practice.

Annual

Business Continuity Update Report 
(report by exception)

Riana Rudland Part of Governance role – not 
mandatory

To each 
meeting

P
age 128



Date of Meeting Agenda item Author Purpose and whether mandatory Frequency

Risk Management Update Report (report 
by exception)

Chris Dean Part of Governance role – not 
mandatory

To each 
meeting

Early to mid 
December 2015

Special meeting – HRA Draft Estimates 
and Business Plan

Section 151 Officer Delegated duty to review HRA 
Estimates
Not a statutory requirement.

Annual

3 December 2015 SHDC Annual Audit Letter 2014/15 External Audit Mandatory/Constitutional requirement
To approve audit fees

Annually

Internal Audit – Audit Plan Progress 
Report

Internal Audit To update Committee on progress of 
the plan.
Not mandatory, but part of 
Governance role.

Quarterly

Mid Term Treasury Report 15/16 Section 151 Officer To comply with Treasury 
Management Strategy, reporting 
requirements.

Half Yearly

Treasury Management Strategy 
Statement, Minimum Revenue Provision 
Policy Statement and Annual Investment 
Strategy 16/17

Section 151 Officer Mandatory requirement.
To review Treasury Management 
Strategy and approve Prudential 
Indicators.

Annual

Business Continuity Update Report 
(report by exception)

Riana Rudland Part of Governance role – not 
mandatory

To each 
meeting.

Risk Management Update Report (report 
by exception)

Chris Dean Part of Governance role – not 
mandatory

To each 
meeting

3 March 2016 Audit Plan External Audit External Audit Plan – Mandatory 
Approval

Annual

Grant Claims 2014/15 External Audit External Audit Certification of Grant 
Claims – Mandatory Approval

Annual

Internal Audit – Audit Plan Progress 
Report

Internal Audit To update Committee on progress of 
the plan.
Not mandatory, but part of 
Governance role.

Quarterly

Internal Audit Plan (plan for the year 
ahead)

Internal Audit Annual Internal Audit Workplan – 
Mandatory Approval

Annual

P
age 129



Date of Meeting Agenda item Author Purpose and whether mandatory Frequency

Audit Mandatory Enquiries Section 151 Officer To confirm the response of the 
external audit mandatory enquiries. 
External auditors are required to 
obtain an understanding on how those 
charged with governance exercise 
oversight of management’s processes 
in relation to fraud, laws and 
regulations and going concerns.
Good Practice

Annual

Business Continuity Update Report 
(report by exception)

Riana Rudland Part of Governance role – not 
mandatory

To each 
meeting

Risk Management Update Report (report 
by exception)

Chris Dean Part of Governance role – not 
mandatory

To each 
meeting

At the end of each municipal year, liaise with S151 Officer to programme regular items in the Work Programme for the next year

P
age 130


	Agenda
	2. Minutes
	3. External Audit Plan 2014/15
	External Audit Plan 2014/15���
	Contents
	Section one�Introduction
	Section two�Headlines
	��Section three�Our audit approach 
	Section three�Our audit approach – planning (continued) 
	Section three�Our audit approach –planning (continued) � 
	Section three�Our audit approach – planning (continued) 
	Section three�Our audit approach – control evaluation
	Section three�Our audit approach – substantive procedures
	Section three�Our audit approach – other matters 
	Section four�Key financial statements audit risks 
	Section four�Key financial statements audit risks 
	Section five�VFM audit approach
	�Section five �VFM audit approach (continued)
	Section five �VFM audit approach (continued)
	Section five �VFM audit approach (continued)
	Section five �VFM audit approach (continued)
	Section six�Audit team
	Section six�Audit deliverables
	Section six�Audit timeline
	Section six�Audit fee
	Appendices�Appendix 1: Independence and objectivity requirements
	Appendices �Appendix 2: KPMG Audit Quality Framework
	Appendices �Appendix 2: KPMG Audit Quality Framework
	Slide Number 26
	Slide Number 27
	Slide Number 28

	4. Certification of grants and returns 2013/14
	5. Internal Audit Update Report
	6. Draft Internal Audit Plan 2015/16
	App 1 Internal Audit Plan 2015 16

	7. Audit Mandatory Enquiries
	Enc. 1 for Audit Mandatory Enquiries

	8. Quarterly Risk Report
	Appendix A: Strategic Risk Register Q3 2014-15
	Appendix B: Operational Risk Exceptions Q3 2014-15

	9. Governance and Audit Committee Work Programme
	Work Programme Appendix A


